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Chairman’s Statement
T EEREE

-

On behalf of the board, | would

like to present the annual report

of Hans Energy Company Limited
and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
for the year 2009.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEREE

Year 2009 was a year of mix. In earlier this year, we experienced the effect of the financial
tsunami swept over the global economy carried over from last year, which led to a sharp
contraction in commercial activities and still dominated the operating conditions in
the region we operate. Fortunately, the implementation of fiscal stimulus programmes
and loosen liquidities by the PRC government boosted the country economy mainly to
simulate the domestic consumption to counter-act the export squeeze to certain extent.
The impact from the counter measures initiated by worldwide economies came into effect
in the second half of 2009. It was apparent by the year end that the worst was over. We
started to see tentative signs of recovery. However, confidence remained fragile and the
road of recovery would be uneven. We are sure challenges and risks remained for years

to come.

Despite the unstable economic environment and fierce market conditions, we remained
focus on our long-term growth objectives in our core business and continue to seek
for development opportunities and new source of business revenue, pushing forward
efforts to complete the terminal in Dongguan and the solid chemical warehouse in Xiao
Hu Island, Panyu, and taking steps to establish customer relationship for new leasing
orders during the year. Leveraging on our trusted brand established over the past years,
the results in this regard turned out to be fruitful. The responses from customers were
encouraging. The basic construction works for Dongguan terminal tank farm have been
completed and that for the solid chemical warehouse have been started. It is expected
to start the Dongguan terminal operations in mid of 2010 and the chemical warehouse
will commence operations by the end of third quarter this year. Coupled with our stable
income stream from long leases in hand, we believe these most invaluable tangible and

intangible assets for the Group will provide sufficient resources to face the risks.

The key economic indicators in the mainland have started to improve, with the domestic
sector taking the lead. It was therefore reasonably expected the demand and consumption
of oil products would increase in 2010, thus the flow of goods through our terminals and
demand for storage facilities would be stimulated as well. Nevertheless, the relatively
loose monetary policies in place during 2009 have led to surging asset prices and there
were concerns about overheating in certain sectors of the PRC economy. The impact
of inflation to our operating costs and construction materials would be modest as the
economic recovery is still in its infancy. The government is expected to maintain its current

stimulus policies yet with care to fine tune in order not to undermine the growth.

Year 2010 will be a year for the Group to start its harvest of crops. With the commencement
of business in Dongguan terminal and XHIT solid chemical warehouse in the second half
of the year, new sources of income will return to the shareholders. The solid foundation
for the Group laid down in previous years will enhance the shareholders’ values of the

Group.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRES

On behalf of the board, | would like to express my heartfelt gratitude for the continuing
support of the shareholders and business partners to the Group over the years, as well as

the efforts and hard work of all directors, the management and staff of the Group.

David An
Chairman
Hong Kong, 30 March 2010
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEFWR DN

OPERATION REVIEW

The operational results of oil and petrochemical terminal located in Xiao Hu Island of

Nansha, Panyu, Guangdong Province in the PRC (“XHIT") were as follows:

Operational Statistics
EEGRHT

Number of vessels visited MEARER

— foreign —HNE)

— domestic — MM E
Number of trucks served to pick up cargoes ~ EWEH  EEEH
Number of drums filled EREE
Transshipment volume (metric ton) EEHss (A

- oils — R

— petrochemicals —Aftm
Port jetty throughput (metric ton) WAt (QNE)
Tank farm throughput (metric ton) rEERELS (M)

E 3 3C1)

URHBEEREEBED I REZOHRALEHE
(VINRAREE D 2 & RENT

Changes %

1%

251 225 +11.6%

614 822 -25.3%
17,982 14,214 +26.5%
34,883 42,628 -18.2%
3,584 158,389 -97.7%
165,341 194,083 -14.8%
1,555,900 1,920,100 -19.0%
1,880,000 2,161,300 -13.0%

The economic downturn after the financial crisis in late 2008 caused the dramatic drop in
market demand for energies and resources, thus impacted the cargoes shipped in and out
of the region we operate. Almost every operating index dropped across the board in 2009.
The transshipment business in XHIT decreased almost 98% in 2009 as a result, especially
as the Chinese government uplifted the import tax rebates to the domestic oil companies
which were available in the beginning of the second quarter of 2008 that stimulated the
increase in importation of oils that year. Fortunately, the remedial measures implemented by
China government in early 2009 subsequent to the financial tsunami stimulated the modest
economic growth in a relatively steady pace. Nevertheless, the port and tank farm throughput
for the year dropped by 19% and 13% respectively as compared to last year, while the
number of foreign vessels berthed and trucks served to pick up cargoes were increased and

XHIT storage tanks maintained close to 100% lease-out rate during the year.

Segment results

Under the first-time adoption of HKFRS 8, Operating Segments, the Group revised segment
disclosure to be based on the way that the chief operating decision maker regards and
manages the Group. Segment results represent the profit for the year in XHIT and Dongzhou
International Terminal (“DZIT"). Both segments lease oil and petrochemical tanks and
provide terminal and transshipment services to generate storage and transshipment income
and port income. However, DZIT is currently under construction and has not yet commenced
its business operations as at 31 December 2009. As such, the reportable segment profit

from operations solely represented the profit from XHIT during the year.

—RENFREEZCRAE  ERKSERE 8
HmISHERMERZFERAE T Y - FLFED
EHAEER KSR ZEMRE - —ETNFLT
S ELE2ME TR - NRACE . EHES
RZZBNFETZTHG% - LEBEN_TZ
NERBEBFES —FRIERE D RRT - R
TREZHRED - E=ZPEBFESREARER
“RTNFYHE LR - AREREZ SR
MESERNER - S8 BHEEEFERDF
AHEREFEDFIMA19%K%13% - EfEAFE
BEEWENEEHEBMLRE - NRALER
TS DM 45 BT 100% 9 AR -

IS

R ERRAKE RIS I E LR ) FE8IR[ 4L Z 5 &
B AREREIELERRAZERERAEEZ
FAMBEDIREE - DHBEER/NEALERR
MBI RMNBEE D 2 FRER - MES
15g HAR M R R T ah A e 0 I AR (A5 58 X o 4 R
BAEEEHBATEARA - A - RMALE
BETERT  R-ZEAFTA=T—HHKRRE
FIE TS EE » Bt - ATRE D BEEN 28Ok
B/NRAOCEZFERER

ANNUAL REPORT 2009 43R 7




Management Discussion
BERE W& D

and Analysis

The breakdown of turnover of XHIT is as follows:

2009
—EENEF

(HK$'000)
(F&x)

558 N AP 7 AR 7
VA B2 88 5 B 7%
B OWA

Terminal, storage and
149,969
8,975

transshipment services

Port income

The turnover from the provision of terminal storage and transshipment facilities decreased
by 2.2% from HK$153.3 million to HK$150.0 million. It was mainly attributable to the
drop in volume of transshipment and cargoes handled in XHIT port during the year and
the turnover from port income decreased by 24.4% from HK$11.9 million to HK$9.0

million, the slide was in line with the decrease in port throughput during the year.

During the year, the Group recorded a slight decrease of segment profit by 1.3% from
HK$100 million to HK$98.6 million. The drop was due to the decrease of turnover from
the provision of terminal, storage and transshipment facilities. For details of the segment

reporting, please refer to note 11 to the financial statements.

OUTLOOK

As the PRC economy has been recovering with the government investment stimuli and
lucrative liquidity policy initiated in 2009, care is expected from the government to ensure
no overheating in the economy yet not to undermine its growth and minimize asset
price bubbles. We do not expect drastic changes in fiscal policies, but it is envisaged
that loose liquidity will be tightened up. It is reasonable to see the commercial activities
and the cargo volume moving in and out of the region will maintain steady as what we

experienced since the second quarter of 2009.

e XHIT Liquid Terminal Business

With the term leases in long to medium terms, we expect the lease-out rate of XHIT
storage tanks to maintain at high 90%. As the volume of cargoes moving in and out of

the region improves, we are conservatively optimistic in XHIT operations for 2010.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEWR DN

e XHIT Solid Warehousing Centre

In Xiao Hu Island, Panyu, the construction works to build a warehousing and logistic
centre for solid chemicals have been started. The construction of the centre will be
completed in mid 2010 to capture the business opportunity of new safety requirements
in dangerous goods caretaking industry in Pearl River Delta. It is expected to start its
operations in the second half of 2010.

e DZIT project

The construction of Dongguan port jetty and tank farm has been completed and the
operating equipment is being installed. The storage capacity of 258,000 cubic metres has
been installed. The testing and commissioning of operation equipment is underway. The
terminal is expected to start operations in mid of this year. The demand response from
the market was extremely good and we are planning to develop the second phase of
the project to build another 500,000 cubic metres tanks this year to meet the pertinent
market demand of port and terminal services. The existing land site is sufficient to build
a storage tank farm of 1,200,000 cubic metres.

e Taishan Crude Oil Terminal project (“TSOT")

Despite the PRC government has indicated its policy of encouraging the involvement of
private sector to participate in national oil reserves in the country, detailed guidelines for
execution have yet been issued. The preparation works for the development of the TSOT
have been started and we shall apply with all relevant authorities for approval once the
government issues the official guidelines.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The operations of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2009 was declined as
compared with that of 2008. The Group's turnover was HK$158.9 million (2008:
HK$165.2 million), representing a decrease of 3.8%. It was driven by the drop in flow of
goods across the south China region and the decrease in volume of cargoes handled in
XHIT port which resulted in less port handling fee and port income collected during the
year. Nevertheless, we were able to maintain a stable gross margin of 68.3%. However,
the profit attributable to equity shareholders was HK$41.7 million (2008: HK$56.4
million), representing a decrease of 26%. The drop was mainly attributable to the decline
in Group's turnover in the year and the increase of income tax rate of GD (Panyu) as a
result of the implementation of the Transitional Tax Rate Policy. The shortfalls in storage
and transshipment income as well as port income were HK$3.3 million and HK$2.9
million respectively. The tax rate for 2009 was 20% while that for 2008 was 9% and the
effect to profit for the year was HK$10.1 million in this regard (please refer to note 6
to the financial statements). EBIT and EBITDA for the year were HK$67.0 million (2008:
HK$72.5 million) and HK$95.2 million (2008: HK$101.7 million) respectively. Accordingly,
the basic and diluted earnings per share for the year were 1.12 Hong Kong cents (2008:
1.51 Hong Kong cents).
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Management Discussion

BEE N

and Analysis

Operational Statistics

BER

o

Turnover B
Gross profit E
Earnings before interest and tax (“EBIT") B ERATAEF (TEBITS)
Profit attributable to equity shareholders AN AR R A m

of the Company
Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation BRFEBITE T8

and amortisation (“EBITDA") K ggssRnmA ([EBITDA])
Gross margin ESVAES
Net profit margin PEFAIE
Basis earnings per share (HK cents) BREKREF (B
Diluted earnings per share (HK cents) GR#EEAT GBI

2009 2008 Changes %
—EZRF —ZEN\F B4 %
(GLEL) (HK$'000)
(F#&x) (FHTT)
158,944 165,166 -3.8
108,601 112,774 -3.7
67,038 72,490 -1.5
41,746 56,395 -26.0
95,213 101,708 -6.4
68.3% 68.3%
26.3% 34.1%
1.12 1.51 -25.8
1.12 1.51 -25.8

Capital structure, liquidity and gearing

As at 31 December 2009, the Group's total cash and cash equivalents amounted to
approximately HK$342 million (31 December 2008: HK$230 million). Most of the funds
were held in HK$, RMB and USS$.

As at 31 December 2009, the current ratio was 0.65 (31 December 2008: 1.37). The
change in current ratio was mainly related to the draw down of the short-term banking
facilities made available to the Group for construction of DZIT new terminal during the
year. Necessary actions have been taken to manage the net current liabilities position as
long-term financing has been arranged to replace such short-term borrowings in 2010 with
repayment terms of over 10 years. It is envisaged that the existing operations of the Group

will be able to generate sufficient cash flow to meet the repayment requirements.

The Group's gearing ratio as at 31 December 2009 was 1.79 (31 December 2008: 1.04)
(defined as total liabilities to total equity). The increase was attributable to the draw
down of the banking facilities made available to the Group to finance the DZIT capital

expenditure during the year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEWR DN

Financial resources

The current cash reserves and recurrent operating cash flow is sufficient for the daily
requirements for current operations. However, the Group has successfully arranged
external bank loan financing for development of new businesses and construction of the
solid chemical warehousing and logistic centre in Xiao Hu Island and DZIT expansion. Due
attention will be paid to the capital and debt markets as well as the latest developments

of the Group in order to ensure the efficient use of financial resources.

Finance costs

The Group had outstanding bank borrowings of HK$897 million as at 31 December 2009
(2008: HK$340 million). However, there was no finance cost charged to profit and loss
for the year as the costs in these borrowings of HK$24.4 million have been capitalized as

construction in progress for the year ended 31 December 2009 (2008: HK$16.4 million).

Taxation

The Group had no assessable profit subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax for the year. On the
other hand, GD (Panyu), the PRC subsidiary of the Group, is subject to the transitional tax
rate of 20% for the year ended 31 December 2009 under the new Corporate Income Tax

Law of the PRC. Details are set out in note 6 to the financial statements.

Exposure to fluctuation in exchanges rate and related
hedge

The Group's cash and cash equivalents are held predominately in HK$, RMB and USS.
Operating outgoings incurred by the Group's subsidiary in the PRC are mainly denominated
in RMB, which usually receives revenue in RMB as well. The management is of the opinion
that the Group's exposure to foreign exchange rate risks is not significant, and hedging

by means of derivative instruments is considered unnecessary.

Charge on group assets

The Group's future non-cancellable lease receivables have been collateralized to a bank
for long-term banking facilities since 2007. Apart from this, as at 31 December 2009,

none of the assets of the Group was pledged.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEERWR D

Capital commitment and contingent liabilities

At 31 December 2009, the Group had capital expenditure contracted for but not provided
in the financial statements in respect of terminal development and acquisition of port and

storage facilities amounted to $184 million (2008: $82 million).

At 31 December 2009, the Group had capital expenditure not contracted for but
approved by the board and not provided in the financial statements in respect of terminal
development and acquisition of port and storage facilities amounted to approximately
$301 million (2008: $387 million).

At 31 December 2009, the Group has no material contingent liabilities.

Employees and remuneration policy

The Group had a workforce of approximately 290 people. Salaries of employees are
maintained at competitive level with reference to the relevant market and are performance
driven.

Final dividend

The directors do not recommend any final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2009
(2008: Nil).
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

EENRGNEEAEREFE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. David An, aged 50, joined the Company as Chairman in July 2002. He has many
years of experience in China business particularly in the provision trading of petroleum

products and petrochemicals, properties investments and developments in China.

Mr. Fung Chi Kwan, Nicholas, aged 50, joined the Company as Chief Financial Officer and
Company Secretary in 2005 and was appointed as Executive Director of the Company in
April 2006. Mr. Fung is an associate member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales and a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. He has over 25 years of experience in financial management for
multinational corporations and listed companies and has worked in major international

accounting firms.

Ms. Liu Zhijun, aged 42, was appointed as Executive Director of the Company in April
2006. Ms. Liu is also the Deputy Chairlady and Chief Financial Controller of Guangdong
Petro-Chemicals Company Limited (“GDPC"), GD (Panyu) and 5N

GDPC in 1997. Prior to that, she had worked in various government departments and

EJFE. She joined

large State-owned enterprises, including the Audit Office of Guangdong Province,
China Travel Service (Holdings) Hong Kong Limited, etc. She has more than 20 years of
experience in financial management. Ms. Liu graduated from Zhongshan University in
1989 with a Bachelor's degree in Economics. Ms. Liu also holds the auditor qualification
certificate of speciality and technology issued by the Ministry of Personnel and National

Audit Office of the People’s Republic of China.

Mr. Zhang Lei, aged 44, was appointed as Executive Director of the Company in
August 2007. He joined the Company as Chief Operating Officer, PRC in 2006. Mr.
Zhang graduated from Dongbei University of Finance and Economics and obtained the
qualification of engineer. Mr. Zhang has many years of experience in petrochemical industry.
He has expertise in petrochemical specialized technology and is familiar with financial
accounting policy and system of the PRC. Mr. Zhang also has in-depth knowledge in large
petrochemical project management. He had served China Petrochemical Corporation and
held various key positions such as the chief financial officer of the Singapore branch,

deputy general manager and chief financial officer of the Hong Kong branch.
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EERSREEAERHE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Li Wai Keung, aged 53, joined the Company as Independent Non-Executive Director
in July 2002. He is also the Chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr. Li graduated
from Hong Kong Polytechnic and holds a Master’s degree in Business Administration from
The University of East Asia. He is also a fellow member of The Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Li has
held a number of positions with companies including Sino Land Company Limited and
Henderson Land Development Company Limited. Mr. Li is now a executive director and
financial controller of GDH Limited and the financial controller of Guangdong Holdings
Limited. Besides, he is a non-executive director of Guangdong Investment Limited, an
independent non-executive director of Shenzhen Investment Limited, China South City
Holdings Limited and Hong Long Holdings Limited, the shares of which are listed on the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

Mr. Liu Jian, aged 56, joined the Company as Independent Non-Executive Director in
July 2002. He is also the Chairman of Remuneration Committee and a member of the
Nomination Committee and the Audit Committee of the Company. Mr. Liu has over 10
years of investment banking experience and over 20 years of experience in China business
management. He graduated from Jiaotong University, Shanghai. Mr. Liu previously worked
for China state-owned enterprises including China Resources Holdings Company Limited
and Ministry of Foreign Trade and Economic Cooperation, the PRC. He also held various

key positions in numerous multinational corporations and listed companies.

Mr. Chan Chun Wai, Tony, aged 38, joined the Company as Independent Non-Executive
Director in May 2005. He is also the Chairman of Nomination Committee and a member
of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr. Chan is
a Certified Public Accountant and works as a director in a certified public accounting
practice. He has extensive experience in general assurance and business advisory services
in both Hong Kong and the PRC. Moreover, Mr. Chan has extensive experience in public
listings in Hong Kong and Singapore, mergers and acquisition as well as corporate
finance. He holds a Master degree in Business Administration from the Manchester
Business School. Mr. Chan is now the independent non-executive director of Honbridge
Holdings Limited, Wai Chun Mining Industry Group Company Limited and Oriental City
Group Holdings Limited, the shares of which are listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.
He is also the independent director of China Nutrifruit Group Limited, the shares of which

are listed on the American Stock Exchange.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

EERSNEEAERE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chen Yi You, aged 60, is a director and a deputy general manager of GD (Panyu).
Before he joined GD (Panyu) in 1992, Mr. Chen was a deputy factory manager for a large
petrochemical company in Guangzhou, the PRC. Mr. Chen has many years of experience

in the management of storage operations for oil and petrochemical products.

BIFR. He joined

GD (Panyu) in 1994. Mr. Li has extensive knowledge and experience in technology

Mr. Li Xiao Hui, aged 41, is a director and a general manger of M E

and operating management of oil and petrochemicals storage. He also holds a Master
degree of corporate management. He is now fully responsible for the management of the

infrastructure and construction project in Dongguan.

Mr. Deng Zhi Gang, aged 36, is a director and a deputy general manager of GD (Panyu).
Mr. Deng obtained his Master’s degree in Business Administration from University of San
Francisco. He joined GD (Panyu) in 1996. He has many years of experience in trading and

marketing in the business of storage for oil and petrochemical products.

Mr. Yi Xiao Hui, aged 42, is a director and a deputy general manager of GD (Panyu).
Mr. Yi graduated from /&AMt THEHE R (currently named as School of
Chemical Engineering of East China University of Science and Technology) and majored
in electrical and mechanical engineering. He joined GD (Panyu) in 1995, and has 20
years of experience in the storage and operation of petrochemical. He especially has
extensive experience in the whole process of construction and operation of large-scale

petrochemical terminals and dangerous chemicals docks.

Mr. Han Ming, aged 38, is a deputy general manager of GD (Panyu). Mr. Han graduated
from Heilongjiang Institute of Commerce and majored in oil storage and transportation
operation. He joined GD (Panyu) in 1994. Mr. Han has many years of experience in

business operation and import and export customs of cargoes.

Mr. Cui Ming, aged 53, is a deputy general manager of GD (Panyu). Before Mr. Cui joined
GD (Panyu) in 1993, he was the deputy general manager of sales department of /51t
E£E X F). He has engaged in the sales of petroleum products for a long time and has

extensive experience in the sales and marketing management of petroleum products.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

EERSREEAERHE

Mr. Nie Yu Hua, aged 42, is a deputy financial controller of GD (Panyu) and a director
and a deputy financial controller of ZMEIEX. He joined GD (Panyu) in 2006. He is an
International Certified Internal Auditor, a member of the Chinese Institute of Certificate
Public Accountants and has professional accountant qualification in PRC. He has over
15 years financial management experiences in large state owned enterprises, and has

worked as a senior project manager in a famous accounting firm.

Mr. Huang Ji Lin, aged 62, is a consultant of GD (Panyu). Mr. Huang graduated from &5
B A 22K in the PRC in 1960's and obtained a Certificate of Graduation in the Senior
Advanced Course in Business Management from Shenzhen University in 1994. Mr. Huang
joined GD (Panyu) in 1992 and is experienced in project management. Mr. Huang is also

a mechanical engineer in the PRC.
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Corporate Governance Report

fﬁfégh*“¢A¥&r:

The Company is committed to a high standard of corporate governance practices
appropriate to the conduct and growth of its business in compliance with the principles
and code provisions (“Code Provisions”) set out in the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices ("CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) (“Listing

Rules"), except for deviations from Code Provision A.4.1 which is explained below.

Under Code Provision A.4.1, non-executive directors should be appointed for a specific
term, subject to re-election. Although the independent non-executive directors do not
have a specific term of appointment, all the existing directors of the Company retire by

rotation at least once every three years pursuant to Article 116.

The Company regularly reviews its corporate governance practices to ensure that these

continue to meet the requirements of the CG Code.

THE BOARD

Responsibilities

The Company has formalised and adopted written terms on the division of functions

reserved to the Board and delegated to the management.

The Board provides leadership and approves strategic policies and plans with a view
to enhance shareholder interests while the day-to-day operations of the Company are

delegated to the management.

The Board reserves for its decisions all major matters of the Company, including: approval
and monitoring of all policy matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal control
and risk management systems, material transactions (in particular those may involve
conflict of interests), financial information, appointment of directors and other significant

financial and operational matters.

All directors have full and timely access to all relevant information as well as the advice
and services of the Company Secretary, with a view to ensuring that Board procedures

and all applicable rules and regulations are followed.

Each director is normally able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate

circumstances at the Company's expense, upon making request to the Board.
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The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the Company are delegated
to the Chief Executive Officer and the senior management. The delegated functions and
work tasks are periodically reviewed. Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior to

any significant transactions entered into by the abovementioned officers.

The Board has the full support of the Chief Executive and the senior management to

discharge its responsibilities.

Composition

The Board has in its composition a balance of skills and experience necessary for

independent decision making and fulfilling its business needs.
The Board of the Company comprises the following directors:

Executive Directors

Mr. David An (Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive)
Mr. Fung Chi Kwan, Nicholas

Ms. Liu Zhijun

Mr. Zhang Lei

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Li Wai Keung (Chairman of Audit Committee and Member of Nomination Committee

and Remuneration Committee)

Mr. Liu Jian (Chairman of Remuneration Committee and Member of Audit Committee

and Nomination Committee)

Mr. Chan Chun Wai, Tony (Chairman of Nomination Committee and Member of

Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee)
None of the members of the Board is related to one another.
During the year ended 31 December 2009, the Board at all times met the requirements of
the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three independent non-executive

directors with at least one independent non-executive director possessing appropriate

professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial management expertise.
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The Company has received written annual confirmation from each independent non-
executive director of his independence pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Rules.
The Company considers all independent non-executive directors to be independent in

accordance with the independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.

The independent non-executive directors bring a wide range of business and financial
expertise, experiences and independent judgement to the Board. Through active
participation in Board meetings, taking the lead in managing issues involving potential
conflict of interests and serving on Board committees, all independent non-executive

directors make various contributions to the effective direction of the Company.

Appointment and Succession Planning of Directors

The Company has established formal, considered and transparent procedures for the

appointment and succession planning of directors.

Although the independent non-executive directors do not have a specific term of
appointment, all the existing directors of the Company retire by rotation at least once

every three years.

Training for Directors

Each newly appointed director receives comprehensive, formal and tailored induction on
the first occasion of his/her appointment, so as to ensure that he/she has appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the Company and that he/she is fully
aware of his/her responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant

regulatory requirements.

There are also arrangements in place for providing continuing briefing and professional

development to directors whenever necessary.
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Board Meetings

Number of Meetings and Directors’ Attendance

Six Board meetings were held during the year.

The individual attendance (either in person or through other electronic means of
communication) record of each director at the meetings of the Board, the Nomination
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Audit Committee during the year

ended 31 December 2009 is set out below:

Directors

=5

Executive Directors HITEE

David An (Chairman of the Board BE(EFSFE
and Chief Executive) FITHARZ)

Fung Chi Kwan, Nicholas HEH

Liu Zhijun 2EE

Zhang Lei RE

Independent Non-Executive Directors BIHHTEE

Li Wai Keung (Chairman of audit committee) — ZFEB(FEHRZEST/F)
Liu Jian (Chairman of remuneration committee) 2Ui& (#FNZE S & F /%)
Chan Chun Wai, Tony (Chairman of PRIRIE (P25

nomination committee) ZEEFE)

Practices and Conduct of Meetings

Notices of regular Board meetings are served to all directors at least 14 days before
the meetings. For other Board and committee meetings, reasonable notice is generally

given.

Agenda and Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and reliable information
are sent to all directors at least 3 days before each Board meeting or committee meeting
to keep the directors apprised of the latest developments and financial position of the
Company and to enable them to make informed decisions. The Board and each director also

have separate and independent access to the senior executives whenever necessary.
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The Company Secretary is responsible to take and keep minutes of all Board meetings
and committee meetings. Draft minutes are normally circulated to directors for comment
within a reasonable time after each meeting and the final version is open for directors’

inspection.

According to current Board practice, any material transaction, which involves a conflict
of interests for a substantial shareholder or a director, will be considered and dealt with
by the Board at a duly convened Board meeting. The Company's Articles of Association
also contain provisions requiring directors to abstain from voting and not to be counted
in the quorum at meetings for approving transactions in which such directors or any of

their associates have a material interest.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Code Provision A.2.1 stipulates that roles of Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive

should be separate and should not be performed by the same individual.

The Company supports the division of responsibility to ensure the balance of power
and authority. However, in view of the fact that the Group’s core business is carried out
singularly by its subsidiary, GD (Panyu), and the fact that the Chief Operating Officer,
China (de facto Chief Executive), who managed the core business, is a separate person,
the Board consider there is no necessity to a separate Chief Executive at the Group

level.

The Board has full confidence in Mr. David An and believes that his appointment of
the posts of chairman and chief executive is beneficial to the business prospects of the

Company.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the Nomination Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the
Company's affairs. All Board committees of the Company are established with defined
written terms of reference. The terms of reference of the Board committees are posted on

the Company's website and are available to shareholders upon request.

The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge their duties
and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent professional advice in

appropriate circumstances, at the Company's expenses.
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Nomination Committee

All the three independent non-executive directors are the members of the Nomination

Committee and Mr. Chan Chun Wai, Tony is the chairman of the committee.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing the Board
composition, developing and formulating relevant procedures for nomination and
appointment of directors, making recommendations to the Board on the appointment and
succession planning of directors, and assessment of the independence of the independent

non-executive directors.

The Nomination Committee carries out the process of selecting and recommending
candidates for directorships by making reference to the skills, experience, professional
knowledge, personal integrity and time commitments of such individuals, the Company’s
needs and other relevant statutory requirements and regulations. An external recruitment
agency may be engaged to carry out the recruitment and selection process when

necessary.

The Nomination Committee met once during the year ended 31 December 2009 to ensure
that the Board has a balance of expertise, skills and experience appropriate to meet the

requirements of the business of the Company.

On 30 March 2009, the Nomination Committee recommended the re-appointment of
Mr. David An, Ms. Liu Zhijun and Mr. Li Wai Keung standing for re-election at the annual

general meeting of the Company held on 14 May 2009.

Remuneration Committee

The Chairman of the Board and the three independent non-executive directors are
the members of the Remuneration Committee and Mr. Liu Jian is the chairman of the

committee.

The primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee include making recommendations
on and approving the remuneration policy and structure and remuneration packages of
the executive directors and the senior executives. The Remuneration Committee is also
responsible for establishing transparent procedures for developing such remuneration
policy and structure to ensure that no director or any of his/her associates will participate
in deciding his/her own remuneration, which remuneration will be determined by reference
to the performance of the individual and the Company as well as market practice and

conditions.
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The Remuneration Committee is to review the remuneration policy and structure
and determine the annual remuneration packages of the executive directors and the
senior executives and other related matters. The Human Resources Department is
responsible for collection and administration of the human resources data and making
recommendations to the remuneration committee for consideration. The Remuneration
Committee consults the Chairman and/or the Chief Executive of the Company about these

recommendations on remuneration policy and structure and remuneration packages.

The Remuneration Committee held no meeting during the year.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises the three independent non-executive directors (including
two independent non-executive director who possesses the appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise) and Mr. Li Wai
Keung is the chairman of the committee. None of the members of the Audit Committee is

a former partner of the Company’s existing external auditors.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

(@)  To review the financial statements and reports and consider any significant or

unusual items before submission to the Board.

(b)  To review the relationship with the external auditors by reference to the work
performed by the auditors, their fees and terms of engagement, and make
recommendation to the Board on the appointment, reappointment and removal of

external auditors.

() To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s financial reporting

system, and risk management system and associated procedures.

(d)  To review the effectiveness of the Company's internal control measures, including
the functions of account and financial reporting, reviewing the adequacy of the
Group's human resources, qualifications and experiences of staffs, training they

received and the relevant budget.

The terms of reference of Audit Committee are updated from time to time and consistent
with the terms set out in the Code Provision. The Audit Committee is provided with
sufficient resources to discharge its duties and has access to independent professional

advice if considers necessary.

FHNERE A AR HMBER LR - URETEHR
TEZERSRITHRA B ZTEHMEN K H 1B
EH ANERTBEEREREEANEREE
MEFMEZESELHEBERUAREE - HFMEE S
Fh% E A B B AR A R R M 2 e =
R BARRRERRSITREHZER -

FR FHZEGUEAFRSH -

ERERBERZIEREBETIIZA

@) FBHYBRRLBREAREBREMERLT
SEHER AERXESES -

(b) REBIEEEMETZTE  BREREE
R tmaT BRI 2 B RS
BERBMIINEZEEMcEE  MEFSR
HHEBER -

(0 BAARFAFBHRERGRERERRLN
NEEREFEL ARG

(d EARRAEBEZESR  BFes kB
EHRMERTTAYR RIAXEEANE
R BTER EREAEEIREEEE
BB

EREZRe s BREES TR EHN - WA TR

XHRE 2z GR - BREEREMfE TR ERIAET
HBE  YARRBREFTENSAELERER -

ANNUAL REPORT 2009 43R 23




Corporate Governance Report

J/J'_\\ 'H‘-\A#&:l

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year ended 31 December 2009
to review the financial results and reports, financial reporting, internal control and

compliance procedures.

There is no material uncertainty relating to events or conditions that may cast significant

doubt on the Company'’s ability to continue as going concern.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of

Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

Specific enquiry has been made of all the directors and the directors have confirmed
that they have complied with the Model Code throughout the year ended 31 December
2009.

The Company has also established written guidelines on no less exacting terms than
the Model Code (the "Employees Written Guidelines”) for securities transactions by
employees who are likely to be in possession of unpublished price-sensitive information

of the Company.

No incident of non-compliance of the Employees Written Guidelines by the employees

was noted by the Company.

Responsibilities in respect of the Financial Statements
and Auditors’ Remuneration

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and understandable assessment
of annual and interim reports, price-sensitive announcements and other financial

disclosures required under the Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements.

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial statements of

the Company for the year ended 31 December 2009.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about their reporting responsibilities
on the financial statements is set out in the “Independent Auditor's Report” on pages
36 to 37.

The remuneration paid to the external auditors of the Company in respect of audit

services and non-audit services for the year ended 31 December 2009 was disclosed on

page 67.
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Internal Controls

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate internal control system to safeguard
shareholder investments and Company assets, and reviewing the effectiveness of such

on an annual basis.

The Company has maintained a tailored governance structure with defined lines of
responsibility and appropriate delegation of responsibility and authority to the senior

management.

The Group's internal control framework, covering all material controls including financial,
operational and compliance controls is established. The internal control framework also

provides for identification and management of risk.

The management is accountable to the Board for operating and monitoring the system
of internal control and for providing assurance to the Board that it has done so. The
Board forms its own view on effectiveness after due and careful enquiry based on the

information and assurances provided to it.

SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS

The rights of shareholders and the procedures for demanding a poll on resolutions at
shareholders’ meetings are contained in the Company's Articles of Association. Details
of such rights and procedures are included in all circulars to shareholders convening
shareholders’ meetings and will be explained during the proceedings of meetings. Upon
the implementation of the amendments of the Listing Rules with effect from 1 January
2009, all resolutions proposed at the shareholders’ meetings will be voted by poll. The
poll voting results will be posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company

immediately after the relevant shareholders’ meetings.

The shareholders’ meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for communication
between the shareholders and the Board. The Chairman of the Board as well as chairmen
of the Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee, or in
their absence, other members of the respective committees, and where applicable, the
independent Board committee, are available to answer questions at the shareholders’

meetings.

Separate resolutions are proposed at shareholders’ meetings on each substantial issue,

including the election of individual directors.

A

ERGARRE DAY ZABELRS SRS
BERARAATNAE - LETRIHLTAM -

ARBREEFTEZERRE  EFAAREL
BESERASREEAERBEREEELEE
EE

BRI AERENLEIEER  SRAAEREE
BREPE  RERBREE - REEEERTHH
AREERRMR -

EEERAREERGCEENERERNEEER
B ITMEFERIFECETAHEE -EZER
FIEMRRBIELEERBEZERN  REYRR
ZHEMEBTTEHER -

BRREMNRIREEBR

BERMWIERAG EERBRERETRERR 212
FIREFERRARRAR 2 EMEIRMA - ZFEF R
BFFEHNARREHBRRRAG ZMABEK
A WHRAGHRIETETHE - LHRAEETRN
“TTNFE-A-RAERE  MEERRAERZ
FPRBERIUABRRITRRR - RERAERENE
PEARBRRANSRTERE TR ARAME -

ARAZBERRERBEREEEGRUBBLR
B-EXESTREMRERELES  FHNEREEREX
ZEeERA(EERFER)SZEGZEMEE R
(HEM)BIEEZEEHERRAE LREMA -

EERRAREL g8 TEFR(BEHEEMNE
F)ERRERER

ANNUAL REPORT 2009 43R 25



Corporate Governance Report
TEERME

The Company continues to enhance communications and relationships with its investors.
Designated senior management maintains regular dialogue with institutional investors
and analysts to keep them abreast of the Company's developments. Enquiries from

investors are dealt with in an informative and timely manner.

To promote effective communication, the Company also maintains a website at
www.hansenergy.com, where extensive information and updates on the Company's
business developments and operations, financial information, corporate governance

practices and other information are posted.
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The directors have pleasure in presenting their annual report and the audited financial

statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2009.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities of its principal

subsidiaries are set out in note 15 to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2009 are set out in the

consolidated income statement on page 38.

Taking into account of tremendous ongoing capital commitment of the Group for those
under going construction works, the directors do not recommend the payment of a
final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2009 (2008: Nil). However, the Board of
Directors will determine dividend distribution policies once the Group has secured long-
term stable income by successfully entering into long-term leases with our customers

during the year.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details in movement in share capital of the Company are set out in note 24 to the

financial statements.

RESERVES

The amounts and particulars of material transfers to and from reserves of the Company
and of the Group during the year are set out on the Consolidated Statement of Changes

in Equity and in note 25 to the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2009, the Company’s reserve available for distribution amounted to
HK$675 million (2008: HK$682 million).

FIXED ASSETS

Details of movements of fixed assets during the year are set out in note 12 to the financial

statements.
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DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive directors
David An (Chairman)
Fung Chi Kwan, Nicholas
Liu Zhijun

Zhang Lei

Independent non-executive directors
Li Wai Keung

Liu Jian

Chan Chun Wai, Tony

Mr. Zhang Lei, Mr. Liu Jian and Mr. Chan Chun Wai, Tony shall retire by rotation and
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting

pursuant to Article 116.

The term of office of each of the independent non-executive directors is the period up to

his retirement as required by the Company's Articles of Association.

None of the directors being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has a service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of compensation, other than

statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2009, the interests and short positions of directors of the Company
and their associates in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) which have been notified to the Company and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be kept pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“Model Code") set out in Appendix 10 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on

the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) were as follows:

28 Hans Energy Company Limited 2B 8RB R A A

S

RAFERBEARERARL  ARARZEER

PITEF
BE(EE)
HED
BE=E

RE

BUHNTEE
FER

2

BRIR (&

SRESLE - BIREERRIREREBRBIBEITZ
BRBFRE LHESE BRESIZMAIENG
B WEFAERLMENS LERE(E -

BYFRTESZEREERARRAGEER
J REREZARBLE
FAERNRAERITZRRBAFAS LERETZE

= OMEERQR MM E QR IAEER
—EFRRAIATEE CEE R ERRSN) M A2 12 AR
aH -

EERKRG HERORER
ARz ERRAR

RZZETNFTZA=1+—HB  KRREFRES
ZHEARRAR REREEE(FERES L
BRG] 57 REAE RN ) EXVED) 2 kth - 18
ity R EREESD - D REES KB RDIEXV
HETRESHIBAEARR T&%;’é HEXMBER
NENHER P ) 2w ok - RERARBEES
&Hﬁié’iﬂmﬁﬂ%3521‘*%%&@32%%5%?92%*
wE - RERBBRAMES EHRAT ETRAD
MISE10FTE E BT AZEFHITES X HHIRLEST
AI([RESFR DREMG AN T RE P72 e &
KA



Directors’ Report

EEWmE

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company

Number of shares

RBE

Nature of interest

EEME

Name of director

EEHR

Mr. David An & {2 55 4> Corporate 2 A)

(Note At 1)

Personal i A
Note:

1. Theshares are held directly as to 209,773,980 shares by Extreme Wise Investments
Ltd (“Extreme Wise") and 2,338,430,000 shares by Vand Petro-Chemicals, both of
which are wholly-owned by Mr. David An. By virtue of SFO, Mr. David An is deemed
to have corporate interest in the 2,548,203,980 shares.

* Mr. David An, being a director of the Company, is also acting as the Chief Executive
of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2009, none of the directors of the Company
and their associates had any interest or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations which had to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO or which were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein or which were required, pursuant to the Model Code, to be

notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the share option scheme detailed in note 23 to the financial statements,
at no time during the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in, or debts securities (including debentures) of, the Company
or any other body corporate and none of the directors, their spouses or children under
the age of 18, had any rights to subscribe for securities of the Company, or had exercised

any such rights.

Long Position
"R

2,548,203,980

218,390,000
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DIRECTORS' INTEREST IN CONTRACTS

There were no contracts of significance to which the Company, or any of its subsidiaries
was a party and in which a director of the Company had a material interest, whether

directly and indirectly, subsisting at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

There were no transactions which were required to be disclosed as connected transactions

in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to a high standard of corporate governance. The Company's
corporate governance practices are based on the Principles and the Code Provisions as
set out in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices contained in Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules. The Company regularly reviews its corporate governance practices to ensure
that these continue to meet the requirements of the Code Provisions. Throughout the year
2009, the Company has complied with the Code Provisions as set out in the Corporate

Governance Report on pages 17 to 26.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARE CAPITAL OF
THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2009, shareholders (other than directors of the Company) who had
interests and short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company which
have been disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV
of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company

under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

30 Hans Energy Company Limited 2B 8RB R A A

EENENPzER

AR B A B A AR AT ST RS P
{ATORS R A e T A0 B A L S PIE AR
EBAH -

BEXS

RIBELETRAURE  MEXSHERERERS -

EER

RRABBAFETEKREZREESR « KRB ZE
ERTERIDAETRBIME 4 P EE R ERT
AIPrHIRA 2 R A K SRR SUR IR A o KA R)E BiiR
AHEMCEERER  URRFHEFE AR - 1
BE—ZTNEFRN AR —HETEITEZE

EEERME &2 TR

FTERRRADEREF 2
mNRE

REZZEZAF+-RA=+—H BREABELARQ
AER)RARRRN RARER DT - ERRES
H R E GG EXVEIE 2R FE3D L - B RARER
BoRmMOAR  HERRHENARRIREES MY
EHRPIEBGREFEZERMAZ ERERE
LN



Directors’ Report

EEWmE

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company

Number of shares

KRB E

Name of shareholder

EEHR

Long Positions

"R

Mr. David An (Note 1) BELEEMZ)

Vand Petro-Chemicals (Note 1) Vand Petro-Chemicals (Hf7%1)
Dubai World Corporation (Note 2)  Dubai World Corporation(477£2)
Extreme Wise (Note 1) Extreme Wise (#73#1)

2,766,593,980
2,338,430,000
370,000,000
209,773,980

Notes:

1. The shares are held directly as to 218,390,000 shares by Mr. David An personally,
as to 209,773,980 shares by Extreme Wise and 2,338,430,000 shares by Vand
Petro-Chemicals, both companies being wholly-owned by Mr. David An. By virtue of
the SFO, Mr. David An is deemed to be interested in the 2,766,593,980 shares. Mr.
David An is a director of Extreme Wise, Vand Petro-Chemicals and the Company.

2. The shares are held directly by Pony HK World, indirectly wholly-owned by Dubai
World Corporation.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2009, the Company has not been notified
by any persons (other than directors or the chief executive of the Company) who had
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which
would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on 16 December 2002, the Company adopted
a share option scheme (the “scheme”) for the purpose of enabling the Company to
recruit and retain high-calibre employees and attract resources that are available to the
Group and to provide the Company with a means of giving incentive to, rewarding,
remunerating, compensating and/or providing benefits to such persons who contribute or
may bring benefit to the Group. The scheme remains in force for a period of 10 years from

adoption of such scheme and expires on 15 December 2012.
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Under the scheme, the board of directors of the Company (the “directors”) may at their
discretion grant options to (i) any director of the Company or any company in which the
Company holds an equity interest; or (i) any employee of the Company or any company in
which the Company owns any equity interest; (iii) any consultant, agent, business affiliate,
professional and other advisor, business partner, joint venture partner, strategic partner,
or any supplier or provider of goods or services to the Company or any subsidiaries of the
Company as may be determined by the directors from time to time to subscribe for the

shares of the Company (the “shares”).

Options granted must be taken up within 21 days of the date of grant, upon payment
of HK$1 per option. The maximum number of shares in respect to which options may
be granted under the scheme shall not exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the
Company on the date of adopting the scheme. The limit may be refreshed at any time
provided that the new limit must not be in aggregate exceed 10% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at the date of the shareholders approval in general meeting.
However, the total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
options granted and yet to be exercised under the scheme and any other scheme of the
Company must not in aggregate exceed 30% of the shares in issue from time to time.
The maximum number of shares in respect of which options may be granted to any
individual in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the shares in issue on the
last date of such 12-month period unless approval of the shareholders of the Company
has been obtained in accordance with the Listing Rules. Options granted to substantial
shareholders or independent non-executive directors in excess of issued share capital of
the Company or with a value in excess of HK$5 million must be approved in advance by

the shareholders of the Company.

Options may be exercised at any time from date of grant of the share option to the 10th
anniversary of the date of grant as may be determined by the directors. The exercise price
is determined by the directors, and will not be less than the higher of the closing price per
share as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily quotation sheets on the date of the grant
of the options and the average closing price per share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheets for the five business days immediately preceding the date of the

grant of the options.
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On 7 May 2008, the Board approved to grant options in respect of 72,400,000 RZZETNFHAEA  EFSEREZTER
ordinary shares to the Company's directors and senior management under the ARElEERSREE NSRS X72,400,0008%
scheme. Details of the share options granted are set out in note 23 to the financial Lok BRI - BRAZRBIRER HERFERR
statements. BTSRRI TE23 ©

Information in relation to share options disclosed in accordance with the Listing IRIRRE P E W AR BIPT 3 B2 A B R A 9 & R 10
Rules on the Stock Exchange was as follows: I

Granted/
Number of exercised/ Number of
Period during Exercise  share options lapsed/cancelled share options

which share options price outstanding at during outstanding at

Eligible person Date of grant are exercisable  per share 1/1/2009 the year 31/12/2009
R-ZBBNE

R-ZBhE HFRBE +ZA=+-8

—A—BMERT T/ R¥/ MRTEBRE

BRETESR SRITEE FEREZHE B ZEE
DIM/YYYY DIMIIYYYY HK$
B/R/% B/R/%F BT
Executive directors HITEE
Mr. Fung Chi Kwan, Nicholas BEHLEE 7/5/2008 715/2008 - 7/5/2011 0.50 8,500,000 - 8,500,000
Ms. Liu Zhijun BFEELL 7/5/2008 715/2008 - 7/5/2011 0.50 8,500,000 - 8,500,000
Mr. Zhang Lei RERE 7/5/2008 7/5/2008 - 7/5/2011 0.50 8,500,000 - 8,500,000
Independent B
non-executive directors HITEFE
Mr. Li Wai Keung TEBEE 7/5/2008 715/2008 - 7/5/2011 0.50 200,000 - 200,000
Mr. Liu Jian Bkt 7/5/2008 715/2008 - 7/5/2011 0.50 200,000 - 200,000
Mr. Chan Chun Wai, Tony BRIRIE £ 7/5/2008 7/5/2008 - 7/5/2011 0.50 200,000 - 200,000
26,100,000 - 26,100,000
Employees ES 7/5/2008 7/5/2008 - 7/5/2011 0.50 46,300,000 - 46,300,000
72,400,000 - 72,400,000
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the aggregate sales attributable to the Group's five largest customers
comprised approximately 75.4% of the Group's total sales and the sales attributable
to the Group's largest customer were approximately 57.6% of the Group's total sales.
The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group's five largest suppliers comprised
approximately 59.7% of the Group's total purchases and the purchases attributable to

the Group's largest supplier were approximately 27.5% of the Group's total purchases.

Saved as disclosed above, none of the directors, their associates or any shareholder
which, to the knowledge of the directors, owned more than 5% of the Company's issued
share capital had any interest in the share capital of any of the five largest customers or

suppliers of the Group.

BORROWINGS

Details of movements in the Group’s bank loans during the year are set out in note 20

to the financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company's Articles of Association
although there is no restriction against such rights under the laws in the Cayman

Islands.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2009, the Group had a workforce of 290 (2008: 260) employees,
274 (2008: 244) of which worked for the terminals. Every year, the Group devises a
budget which states total salary and bonus plan for the year to encourage the Group's
employees to contribute their best efforts and to make maximum economic benefits to
the Group. In accordance with the relevant government regulations in the PRC, the Group
is required to cover social insurance, including but not limited to retirement, medical,
workman compensation and unemployment insurance as well as housing fund for every
qualified employee in the PRC. With these insurance policies and staff benefits, the Group

hopes to provide a reasonable welfare for each qualified employee.
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Directors’ Report
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or

sold any of the Company's listed securities.

PUBLIC FLOAT

For the year ended 31 December 2009, based on the information that is publicly available
to the Company and within the knowledge of the directors, the Company has maintained

the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules.

LITIGATION

As at 31 December 2009, there were no material contingent liabilities in respect of

outstanding litigation or legal proceedings that need to be disclosed.

AUDITORS

KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for
the re-appointment of KPMG as auditors of the Company is to be proposed at the

forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

On behalf of the Board
David An

Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2010
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B A BEN RS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE
SHAREHOLDERS OF
HANS ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hans Energy Company
Limited (the "Company”) set out on pages 38 to 111, which comprise the consolidated
and company balance sheets as at 31 December 2009, and the consolidated income
statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory

notes.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and the true and fair
presentation of these financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and the true
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies;

and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audit. This report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of

this report.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B M A% BIED R

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable

assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and true and
fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the

financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 December 2009 and of the Group’s
profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

30 March 2010
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Consolidated Income Statement

|
?vT\n/Eu\ Eﬁﬁ%

for the year ended 31 December 2009
I —FTENF+—A=1—HIFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LETHIT)

Turnover 3 3 158,944 165,166
Cost of sales HERA (50,343) (52,392)
Gross profit EF 108,601 112,774
Other net income H b F 5 4 1,579 3,851
Administrative expenses TEE A (43,142) (44,135)
Profit from operations Syl 67,038 72,490
Finance costs BA ISR AR 5(a) - -
Profit before taxation BB AR R 5 67,038 72,490
Income tax FTiS#t 6(a) (19,085) (8,972)
Profit for the year FRER 47,953 63,518
Attributable to: PEfh
Equity shareholders of the Company RARRE 41,746 56,395
Minority interests DEIR R R 6,207 7,123
Profit for the year FRRF 47,953 63,518
Earnings per share BREF 10
— basic B 7N 1.12 cents 1l 1.51 cents 1l
— diluted —8E 1.12 cents 1l 1.51 cents 1l
The notes on pages 45 to 111 form part of these financial statements. HRFSEZ A ZMETRAREERBHRER L
—&5 o
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

mEEEWER

for the year ended 31 December 2009
Bt —EZANFF —A=+—HIFFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LETHITR)

Profit for the year FREF 47,953 63,518
Other comprehensive income FRHEMEZEKE

for the year
Exchange differences on translation ME R BIE A B A

of financial statements of PRC M mRZERZER

subsidiaries 867 24,280
Total comprehensive income FAREWEARE

for the year 48,820 87,798
Attributable to: Pt
Equity shareholders of the Company RARRE 42,544 78,647
Minority interests DB R R 6,276 9,151
Total comprehensive income FRE2EKEAE

for the year 48,820 87,798

The notes on pages 45 to 111 form part of these financial statements.

M RAR SR BRRZ —

\

RELSEE11
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

SREERER

at 31 December 2009
R-FENFF+_FA=1—H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(L ETIIT)

Non-current assets kRBEE
Fixed assets BEEEE
— Property, plant and equipment o E B 12(a) 258,046 280,834
— Construction in progress —HFREIRE 12(a),(b) 976,598 509,716
— Interests in land held for own use —RELEHEREER
under operating leases 2 T 12(c) 19,921 21,389
Prepayments for acquisition of land Yo iE b 6 PR
use rights Z TRt IE 14 - 25,695
Prepayments for construction costs FEEERN AN 2 FE RRIE 34,056 14,828
Intangible assets BV EE 13 3,180 3,380
1,291,801 855,842
Current assets REEE
Interests in land held for own use RELCEHERESR
under operating leases 2 Tk 12(c) 1,502 1,500
Inventories — consumable parts FE—EfEm 2,900 3,193
Trade and other receivables B 5 R E AU GRIE 6 8,947 7,364
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEEER 17 342,421 230,031
355,770 242,088
Current liabilities ik =R
Other payables and accruals HAb R RIEREHRE R 18 108,161 79,381
Deferred revenue BTN 25 19 38,527 95,471
Short-term bank loans RERITER 20 397,502 -
Current taxation IEARETE 21(a) 4,707 2,125
548,897 176,977
Net current (liabilities)/assets RE(EE) BEEFE (193,127) 65,111
Total assets less current liabilities BMEERRBAERE 1,098,674 920,953
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

mEBEERER

at 31 December 2009
RZBENF+=FA=+—H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LETIT)

Non-current liabilities ERBAE
Deferred revenue IRAEW 19 - 34,318
Deferred tax liabilities EETHIBEE 21(b) 7,977 7,803
Bank loans RITER 20 499,592 340,176
507,569 382,297
Net assets BERE 591,105 538,656
Capital and reserves BEEAR
Share capital [N 24 373,264 373,264
Reserves & 171,274 125,101
Total equity attributable to equity AARRREGEER
shareholders of the Company 544,538 498,365
Minority interests DR RER 46,567 40,291
Total equity wmrER 591,105 538,656

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 30 March 2010.

David An
E

Chairman

E

The notes on pages 45 to 111 form part of these financial statements.

R-F-FF=A=TREEFEIEREET
g

Fung Chi Kwan, Nicholas
BEH
Executive Director

#HITEE

FBEZNMEZHFAEKRLEEMBHHRT 2 —

e

o
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Balance Sheet
EESEX

at 31 December 2009
R-FENFF+_FA=1—H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(L ETIIT)

Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BE RERE 12(d) 68 214
Investments in subsidiaries RHBARZIRE 15 1,054,339 1,054,330
1,054,407 1,054,544
Current assets REBEE
Other receivables HoAth fE U R TE 16 358 358
Cash and cash equivalents BehkReEEIEB 17 3,755 7,513
4,113 7,871
Current liabilities k=R
Other payables H b fE S F0R 1,149 1,175
Net current assets REBEEFE 2,964 6,696
Net assets EEFHE 1,057,371 1,061,240
Capital and reserves BEARR#FE
Share capital [N 24 373,264 373,264
Reserves B 25 684,107 687,976
Total equity BRER 1,057,371 1,061,240

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 30 March 2010.

R-F-FF=A=THEEFEHERERET

Ei

David An Fung Chi Kwan, Nicholas
=iz B
Chairman Executive Director
FE HITEE
The notes on pages 45 to 111 form part of these financial statements. HRFSEZINE M AEXK SR BERERZ
—&B5 o
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mEEREER

for the year ended 31 December 2009
Bt —EZANFF —A=+—HIFFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LETHITR)
Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
FATRREE RS

PRC Share - based

Share statutory compensation

capital

Share Special ~ Translation Accumulated Minority Total

IEEY
o8
RRER

premium reserve reserve reserve losses Total

H B
EEfRE  HHERE
(note (d))

reserve equity

BA  RGEE

(note (a)

BhIfRE
(note (b))

EXRE
(note (c))

iR aEs

(note (e))

Balance at 1 January 2008 RZEENE-R—B2&EH 373264 710,477 (251,428) 32,565 31,947 - (483,289) 413,536 31,140 444676
Total comprehensive income ERRENGHE
for the year - - - 22,15 - - 56,395 78,647 9,151 87,798
Equity settled share-based INEREEZ
transaction RiA%5 - - - - - 6,182 - 6,182 - 6,182
Balance at 31 December 2008 W=EENE+ZR
Zt-R2E&R 33264 70477 (251,428) 54,817 31,947 6,182 (426,894) 498365 40,091 538,656
Balance at 1 anuary 2009 RoETAE-A-BzER 313264 TI04TT (51428 54817 31947 6182  (426894) 498365 40201 538,656
Total comprehensive income FRRENGEE
for the year - - - 798 - - 41,746 42,544 6,276 48,820
Equity settled share-based INEREEL
transaction Bz 5 - - - - - 3,629 - 3,629 - 3,629
Balance at 31 December 2009 RZZENETZA
ST-AER 373,264 710,477 (251,428) 55,615 31,947 9,811 (385,148) 544,538 46,567 591,105
Notes: Hfat
(@)  The application of the share premium account is governed by the Companies Law ~ (a) R EERZERTHESHE QAL (E

(Revised) of the Cayman Islands.

FIRE -

(b)  The special reserve arose from the reverse acquisition in December 2004. (b) HRFHEA-_ZSENF+_AzREEmE
Ao

() The translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences arising fromthe () EXFEEOBEEGEFBEUINCE EBEHE
translation of financial statements of operations outside Hong Kong. The reserve is BREMEENMBELZ%E - ZHEE IR
dealt with in accordance with the accounting policies set out in note 1(r). B @5 BRI -

(d)  According to the articles of association and board resolution of Guangdong (Panyu) ~ (d) RIEEE(FES) AR ITREEMEARAA
Petrochemical Storage & Transportation Limited (“GD (Panyu)"), an amount not ([B88(HFBR)DMNARERREEGRE
more than 10% of the profit before taxation may be transferred to a PRC statutory X AHRER(ER)EENERBERVING
reserve at the discretion of GD (Panyu)’s directors. FITHBBI0%ZRBETEFHE

(e)  Share-based compensation reserve represents fair value of employee services in  (e) A& 15 %7 B {5 8 5 T 2123 F 3 AR 5% B I it ot 21

respect of share options granted under the share option scheme as set out in note
23.

EHEREERENEERBZDAE -
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

GeRTmER

for the year ended 31 December 2009
BE_FTTAF+-_A=+—AILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(BETTHIR)

Operating activities R
Cash generated from operations CEEBHFRS 17(b) 9,606 16,586
PRC Enterprises Income Tax paid ENHPBEEEMERH (16,348) (6,181)
Net cash (used in)/generated from R (A FBRLSFHE

operating activities (6,742) 10,405
Investing activities REETH
Capital expenditure BEARFY (413,518) (208,849)
Repayment of payable to ex-shareholder M—RHE A FH

of a subsidiary AR SR & K - (3,401)
Interest received 2 FE 683 1,711
Proceeds from disposals of property, HEME - WE K&

plant and equipment ZFT{S I8 14 48
Purchase of intangible assets BARRAE - (1,500)
Net cash used in investing activities BRETHMARESTE (412,821) (211,991)
Financing activities RMEES
Interest paid EATFLE (24,381) (16,429)
Dividend paid to minority shareholders BRI HIRRARE - (1,596)
Proceeds from new bank loans FRITE RS RIE 555,912 111,778
Net cash generated from financing RETBME

activities RERE 531,531 93,753
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and ReERBLSHEBBR®M

cash equivalents (Rd)#8 111,968 (107,833)
Cash and cash equivalents at FUzEERERS

beginning of the year %£{E1EE 230,031 323,284
Effect of foreign exchange SMEERSH IXE

rate changes 422 14,580
Cash and cash equivalents at FRZBEERES

end of the year Z£@EEE 17(a) 342,421 230,031

The notes on pages 45 to 111 form part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BAEE R AR MY AL

1 Significant accounting policies

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all
applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"), which
collective term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs") and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants ("HKICPA"),

Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies

accounting principles generally accepted in

Ordinance. These financial statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. A summary of the significant

accounting policies adopted by the Group is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that are first
effective or available for early adoption for the current accounting period of
the Group and the Company. Note 2 provides information on any changes in
accounting policies resulting from initial application of these developments
to the extent that they are relevant to the Group for the current and prior

accounting periods reflected in these financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2009 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as

the "Group”).

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared assuming
the Group will continue as a going concern notwithstanding net current
liabilities of the Group as at 31 December 2009 amounting to $193 million.
The directors are of the opinion that, based on a review of the working
capital forecast of the Group for the year ending 31 December 2010 and
the re-financing of the Group’s bank loans after the balance sheet date
as disclosed in note 32 to the financial statements, the Group will have
adequate funds to finance its working capital and capital expenditure

requirements.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial statements
is the historical cost basis.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LETAR)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 R AR B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LETHT)

1 Significant accounting policies (ontinved)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial
statements (continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of
making the judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that
are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from

these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in
the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both

current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of HKFRSs that have
significant effect on the financial statements and major sources of estimation

uncertainty are discussed in note 33.

(c) Subsidiaries and minority interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control exists when the
Group has the power to govern the financial and operating policies of the
entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. In assessing control, potential

voting rights that presently are exercisable are taken into account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the consolidated financial
statements from the date that control commences until the date that control
ceases. Intra-group balances and transactions and any unrealised profits
arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-
group transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but

only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR IR MY RE

Significant accounting policies (continved)

(c) Subsidiaries and minority interests (continued)

Minority interests represent the portion of the net assets of subsidiaries
attributable to interests that are not owned by the Company, whether
directly or indirectly through subsidiaries, and in respect of which the Group
has not agreed any additional terms with the holders of those interests
which would result in the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation
in respect of those interests that meets the definition of a financial liability.
Minority interests are presented in the consolidated balance sheet within
equity, separately from equity attributable to the equity shareholders of the
Company. Minority interests in the results of the Group are presented on the
face of the consolidated income statement and the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income as an allocation of the total profit or loss and
total comprehensive income for the year between minority interests and the

equity shareholders of the Company.

Where losses applicable to the minority exceed the minority's interest in the
equity of a subsidiary, the excess, and any further losses applicable to the
minority, are charged against the Group’s interest except to the extent that
the minority has a binding obligation to, and is able to, make additional
investment to cover the losses. If the subsidiary subsequently reports profits,
the Group's interest is allocated all such profits until the minority's share of

losses previously absorbed by the Group has been recovered.

In the Company's balance sheet, an investment in a subsidiary is stated at

cost less impairment losses (see note 1(g)).

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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B 5 R AR B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LETHT)

1

48

Significant accounting policies (continved)

(d) Fixed assets

U]

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated

depreciation and impairment losses (see note 1(g)).

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant and equipment
includes the cost of materials, direct labour, the initial estimate,
where relevant, of the costs of dismantling and removing the items
and restoring the site on which they are located, and an appropriate
proportion of production overheads and borrowing costs (see note

1(s)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item
of property, plant and equipment are determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
item and are recognised in profit or loss on the date of retirement

or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of property,
plant and equipment, less their residual value, if any, using the

straight-line method over their estimated useful lives as follows:
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR IR MY RE

1 Significant accounting policies (ontinved)

(d) Fixed assets (continued)

(i

(ii)

(continued)

Buildings 5 — 30 years
Dock and storage facilities 5 — 37 years
Office equipment 5—10 years
Motor vehicles 5-10 years

Leasehold improvements Over the term of the lease
Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated on a reasonable
basis between the parts and each part is depreciated separately. Both
the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any, are reviewed

annually.

Construction in progress represents dock and storage facilities
under construction and pending installation, and is stated at cost
less impairment losses (see note 1(g)). Cost comprises direct costs
of construction as well as interest charges, and foreign exchange
differences on related borrowed funds to the extent that they are
regarded as an adjustment to interest charges, during the periods of

construction.

Construction in progress is transferred to property, plant and
equipment when the asset is ready for its intended use. No depreciation

is provided in respect of construction in progress.

(e) Intangible assets

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are stated in the balance

sheet at cost less accumulated amortisation (where the estimated useful

life is finite) and impairment losses (see note 1(g)). Amortisation of club

memberships is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the

estimated useful lives of 17 to 20 years.

Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed annually.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LETHT)

1

50

Significant accounting policies (continved)

(f) Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of transactions, is or
contains a lease if the Group determines that the arrangement conveys a
right to use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of time in return
for a payment or a series of payments. Such a determination is made based

on an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless of

whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by Group under leases which transfer to the Group
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified
as being held under finance leases. Leases which do not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the Group are

classified as operating leases, with the following exception:

- land held for own use under an operating lease, the fair value
of which cannot be measured separately from the fair value
of a building situated thereon at the inception of the lease, is
accounted for as being held under a finance lease, unless the
building is also clearly held under an operating lease. For these
purposes, the inception of the lease is the time that the lease
was first entered into by the Group, or taken over from the

previous lessee.

(i) Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under operating leases,
payments made under the leases are charged to profit or loss in
equal instalments over the accounting periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis is more representative of
the pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asset. Lease
incentives received are recognised in profit or loss as an integral part
of the aggregate net lease payments made. Contingent rentals are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in which they are

incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating lease is amortised

on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease term.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR IR MY RE

1 Significant accounting policies (ontinved)

(g) Impairment of assets

(i)

Impairment of current receivables

Current receivables that are stated at cost or amortised cost are
reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine whether there is
objective evidence of impairment. Objective evidence of impairment
includes observable data that comes to the attention of the Group
about one or more of the following loss events:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments;

- it becoming probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or

other financial reorganisation; and

- significant changes in the technological, market, economic or
legal environment that have an adverse effect on the debtor.

If any such evidence exists, impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the financial asset's
original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed
at initial recognition of these assets), where the effect of discounting
is material. This assessment is made collectively where financial
assets carried at amortised cost share similar risk characteristics, such
as similar past due status, and have not been individually assessed as
impaired. Future cash flows for financial assets which are assessed
for impairment collectively are based on historical loss experience for

assets with credit risk characteristics similar to the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be linked objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognised, the impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss. A reversal of an impairment loss shall not result
in the asset's carrying amount exceeding that which would have been

determined had no impairment loss been recognised in prior years.
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B 5 R AR B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(L8TTHR)

1 Significant accounting policies (ontinved)

(g) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Impairment of current receivables (continued)

Impairment losses are written off against the corresponding assets
directly, except for impairment losses recognised in respect of trade
and other receivables, whose recovery is considered doubtful but not
remote. In this case, the impairment losses for doubtful debts are
recorded using an allowance account. When the Group is satisfied that
recovery is remote, the amount considered irrecoverable is written off
against trade and other receivables directly and any amounts held in
the allowance account relating to that debt are reversed. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously charged to the allowance account
are reversed against the allowance account. Other changes in the
allowance account and subsequent recoveries of amounts previously

written off directly are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at each
balance sheet date to identify indications that the following assets
may be impaired or an impairment loss previously recognised no

longer exists or may have decreased:

- fixed assets;

intangible assets;

- investments in subsidiaries; and

- non-current prepayments

If any such indication exists, the asset's recoverable amount is

estimated.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR IR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LGETIR)

1 Significant accounting policies (contined) 1 EXEFEHERw

(g) Impairment of assets (continued)

(9) EERME®)

(i) Impairment of other assets (continued) (i) HupEEREE)

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its fair
value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using the pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset. Where an asset does not generate
cash inflows largely independent of those from other assets,
the recoverable amount is determined for the smallest group of
assets that generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-

generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss if the carrying
amount of an asset, or the cash-generating unit to which it
belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of cash-generating units are allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to
the cash-generating unit (or group of units) and then, to reduce
the carrying amount of the other assets in the unit (or group
of units) on a pro rata basis, except that the carrying value of
an asset will not be reduced below its individual fair value less

costs to sell, or value in use, if determinable.
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B 5 R AR B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LETHT)

1 Significant accounting policies (ontinved)

(g) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i) Impairment of other assets (continued)

- Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a favourable
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount. An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not

reversed.

Areversal of an impairment loss is limited to the asset's carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to the profit or loss in the year in which the

reversals are recognised.

(h) Inventories

Spare parts held for consumption by the Group are stated at cost less any

provision for obsolescence.

(i) Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair value and
thereafter stated at amortised cost less allowance for impairment of doubtful
debts (see note 1(g)), except where the receivables are interest-free loans
made to related parties without any fixed repayment terms or the effect of
discounting would be immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated

at cost less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts.
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PR IR MY RE

1 Significant accounting policies (ontinved)

1)

(k)

(1)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand, demand
deposits with banks and other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having
been within three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank overdrafts that
are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group's cash
management are also included as a component of cash and cash equivalents
for the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value less
attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-
bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any difference between
the amount initially recognised and redemption value being recognised in
profit or loss over the period of the borrowings, together with any interest

and fees payable, using the effective interest method.

Employee benefits

(i) Short-term employee benefits and contributions to defined

contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits
are accrued in the year in which the associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or settlement is deferred and the effect

would be material, these amounts are stated at their present values.

(i)~ Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is recognised as
an employee cost with a corresponding increase in a capital reserve
within equity. The fair value is measured at the grant date after taking
into account the terms and conditions upon which the options were
granted. Where the employees have to meet vesting conditions before
becoming unconditionally entitled to the options, the total estimated
fair value of the share options is spread over the vesting period,
taking into account the probability that the options will vest.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(L8TTHR)

1

56

Significant accounting policies (continved)

(I) Employee benefits (continved)

(i) Share-based payments (continued)

During the vesting period, the number of share options that is expected
to vest is reviewed. Any resulting adjustment to the cumulative fair
value recognised in prior years is charged/credited to the profit or
loss for the year of the review, unless the original employee expenses
qualify for recognition as an asset, with a corresponding adjustment
to the capital reserve. On the vesting date, the amount recognised as
an expense is adjusted to reflect the actual number of options that
vest (with a corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve) except
where forfeiture is only due to not achieving vesting conditions that
relate to the market price of the Company's shares. The equity amount
is recognised in the capital reserve until either the option is exercised
(when it is transferred to the share premium account) or the option

expires (when it is released directly to retained profits).

(m) Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in deferred
tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that they
relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other

comprehensive income or in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year,
using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date,

and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and taxable
temporary differences respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes
and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses

and unused tax credits.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LGETIR)

1 Significant accounting policies (contined) 1 EXEFEHERw
(m) FRGHL ()

(m) Income tax (continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities, and all
deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition of deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences include those that will
arise from the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences, provided
those differences relate to the same taxation authority and the same taxable
entity, and are expected to reverse either in the same period as the expected
reversal of the deductible temporary difference or in periods into which a
tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward.
The same criteria are adopted when determining whether existing taxable
temporary differences support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising
from unused tax losses and credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority and the same taxable
entity, and are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax

loss or credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities
are those temporary differences arising from the initial recognition of assets
or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided they
are not part of a business combination) and temporary differences relating
to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case of taxable
differences, the Group controls the timing of the reversal and it is probable
that the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case
of deductible differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse in the

future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on the expected
manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance

sheet date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(L8TTHR)

1 Significant accounting policies (ontinved)

(m)

Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at each balance
sheet date and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow the related tax benefit
to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes

probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary difference
arising on undistributed profits of investments in subsidiaries, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary differences and it
is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable

future.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements therein,
are presented separately from each other and are not offset. Current tax
assets are offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group has the legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities

and the following additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the Company or the
Group intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset

and settle the liability simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they relate to

income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either:

—  the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets
are expected to be settled or recovered, intend to realise the
current tax assets and settle the current tax liabilities on a net

basis or realise and settle simultaneously.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR IR MY RE

1 Significant accounting policies (ontinved)

(n)

(0)

(p)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of uncertain timing or amount
when the Group or the Company has a legal or constructive obligation
arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can
be made. Where the time value of money is material, provisions are stated at

the present value of the expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation
is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of

outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Deferred revenue

Deferred revenue represents unearned rental income received in advance,
which is recognised as revenue in profit or loss in equal instalments over the

periods covered by the lease term (see note 1(q)(i)).

Other payables

Other payables are initially recognised at fair value and thereafter stated
at amortised cost unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in

which case they are stated at cost.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LGETIR)
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(L8TTHR)

1

60

Significant accounting policies (continved)

(q) Revenue recognition

(r)

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable. Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably,

revenue is recognised in profit or loss as follows:

() Rental income receivable under operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss in equal instalments over the periods covered by the
lease term, except where an alternative basis is more representative
of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the use of the leased
asset. Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss as an

integral part of the aggregate net lease payments receivable.

(i) Port income is recognised in profit or loss upon performance of the

services.

(i) Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective interest

method.

Translation of foreign currencies

The functional currencies of the Company and its subsidiaries in the PRC
are Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi respectively. The Group adopted Hong

Kong dollars as its presentation currency.

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated at the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date. Exchange gains or losses

are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the transaction dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was

determined.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR IR MY RE

1 Significant accounting policies (ontinved)

(r)

(s)

()

Translation of foreign currencies (continued)

The results of foreign operations are translated into Hong Kong dollars at
the exchange rates approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
dates of the transactions. Balance sheet items are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the closing foreign exchange rates at the balance sheet date.
The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive

income and accumulated separately in equity in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of the exchange
differences relating to that foreign operation is reclassified from equity to

profit or loss when the profit or loss on disposal is recognised.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of an asset which necessarily takes a substantial period of
time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the
cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which

they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of a qualifying asset
commences when expenditure for the asset is being incurred, borrowing
costs are being incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare the
asset for its intended use. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended
or ceases when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the

qualifying asset for its intended use are complete.

Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, a party is considered to be

related to the Group if:

(i) the party has the ability, directly or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries, to control the Group or exercise significant influence
over the Group in making financial and operating policy decisions, or

has joint control over the Group;

(i) the Group and the party are subject to common control;

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LGETSR)
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LETHT)

1 Significant accounting policies (ontinved)

(t) Related parties (continued)

(iii)  the party is an associate of the Group or a joint venture in which the

Group is a venturer;

(iv)  the party is a member of key management personnel of the Group or
the Group's parent, or a close family member of such an individual, or
is an entity under the control, joint control or significant influence of

such individuals;

(v)  the party is a close family member of a party referred to in (i) or is an
entity under the control, joint control or significant influence of such

individuals; or

(vi)  the party is a post-employment benefit plan which is for the benefit of
employees of the Group or of any entity that is a related party of the

Group.

Close family members of an individual are those family members who may
be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that individual in their dealings

with the entity.

(u) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item reported in the
financial statements, are identified from the financial information provided
regularly to the Group's most senior executive management for the purposes
of allocating resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group's

various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for financial
reporting purposes unless the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products and services, the nature
of production processes, the type or class of customers, the methods, used
to distribute the products or provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are not individually

material may be aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.

(v) Dividends

Dividends are recognised as a liability in the period in which they are

declared.

62 Hans Energy Company Limited % B8R B R A 7

1

BEAEFBEw

(t)

(u)

(v)

BEALT#)

(i) ZATAREEZBEQFHA
EHEAEEERZAEAR]

v ZALRAKERASEGARE
EEBABZKE  HEMALZ
MRFHKE - ARZAMALE
B HEZESINEAVEZ B

() RALBRBOBAEALZEH
RIEREXIRZEBALES
HEEHREAZEZERE X

Vi) BATRRAEEEEXBERA

sl
i
T
3%
A

1
X
p
H,
35_\_,
s
w
>_
H_
A

I
NG

BEDHMEFBHERARRZ Dz
B DRBERAEESESTREREE
HREBFRAARESRER D
FLERLFHAE KRR ZHBER -

ERERRED ISR BERARE A
B BRIEARE D B AE RSB
M WREBUNEREKRBEE - &
EIFHEE FRPEERARN - D
EmERERE A WREBRRENE
G o ERIZEERMLEDEMATE Lt
REZEEAR T AR -

’RE

BTN EIRMEEAREE -



Notes to the Financial Statements

PR IR MY RE

Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued one new HKFRS, a number of amendments to HKFRSs and
new Interpretations that are first effective for the current accounting period of the
Group and the Company. The following developments are relevant to the Group's

financial statements:

- HKFRS 8, Operating segments

- HKAS 1 (revised 2007), Presentation of financial statements

- Amendments to HKFRS 7, Financial instruments: Disclosures — improving

disclosures about financial instruments

- HKAS 27, Consolidated and separate financial statements — cost of an

investment in a subsidiary, jointly controlled entity or associate

- HKAS 23 (revised 2007), Borrowing costs

—  Amendments to HKFRS 2, Share-based payment — vesting conditions and

cancellations

The amendments to HKAS 23 and HKFRS 2 have had no material impact on
the Group's financial statements as the amendments and interpretations were
consistent with policies already adopted by the Group. In addition, the amendments
to HKFRS 7 do not contain any additional disclosure requirements specifically
applicable to the Group's financial statements. The impact of the remainder of

these developments is as follows:

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LOETIR)

BETHREE

RGN AT ERENAEE AR B HAR
BET IR R AR B E BN B RE
R - ZECEBPBRS ENER] K2
o TIZREEETHEAEEZ BB RKMA
A

- (EBYBHMEER)DFEHLL 5]

- (EERHERDEIR(CTTLEE
A BB H%Z 25057

- (EBUBHREERNDETR(EE]) (25
TA: FENEHTAZHE]

- (EBGHBANDBEIRIHFE KRB
BHE - RERWE L A] - HEEHE
BB &N 2 KA ]

- (EBEHEADEBR(-_ZTLFE
HESIF-=2&

- (EBYBMEEIDFE2RUERT) [LK
DB M — BB IR R T ]

MRZEEFT R REEA LB RANER
—2 0 BUEBGRERDF W R(E BT
WEERDFE 2R OE T IR E AR B W B 75
WRUEEREATZE - I (BEPBR
FEADBIFMEFT R LB S EEH
RARBBBHRR ZEMEMBPESRE - &
B BERE R RREZEZENT

ANNUAL REPORT 2009 43R 63




Notes to the Financial Statements

BAEE R AR MY AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LETHT)

2 Changes in accounting policies (ontinved)

- HKFRS 8 requires segment disclosure to be based on the way that the
Group's chief operating decision maker regards and manages the Group,
with the amounts reported for each reportable segment being the measures
reported to the Group's chief operating decision maker for the purposes
of assessing segment performance and making decisions about operating
matters. This contrasts with the presentation of segment information in
prior years which was based on a disaggregation of the Group’s financial
statements into segments based on related products and services and on
geographical areas. The adoption of HKFRS 8 has resulted in the presentation
of segment information in a manner that is more consistent with internal
reporting provided to the Group's most senior executive management, and
has resulted in different reportable segments being identified and presented
(see note 11). Corresponding amounts have been provided on a basis

consistent with the revised segment information.

—  As aresult of the adoption of HKAS 1 (revised 2007), details of changes in
equity during the year arising from transactions with equity shareholders in
their capacity as such have been presented separately from all other income
and expenses in a revised consolidated statement of changes in equity.
All other items of income and expense are presented in the consolidated
income statement, if they are recognised as part of profit or loss for the
year, or otherwise in a new primary statement, the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income. Corresponding amounts have been restated to
conform to the new presentation. This change in presentation has no effect
on reported profit or loss, total income and expense or net assets for any

period presented.

- The amendments to HKAS 27 have removed the requirement that dividends
out of pre-acquisition profits should be recognised as a reduction in the
carrying amount of the investment in the investee, rather than as income. As
a result, as from 1 January 2009 all dividends receivable from subsidiaries,
whether out of pre- or post-acquisition profits, will be recognised in the
Company'’s profit or loss and the carrying amount of the investment in the
investee will not be reduced unless that carrying amount is assessed to be
impaired as a result of the investee declaring the dividend. In such cases,
in addition to recognising dividend income in profit or loss, the Company
would recognise an impairment loss. In accordance with the transitional
provisions in the amendment, this new policy will be applied prospectively
to any dividends receivable in the current or future periods and comparatives
for the preceding period have not been restated.
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BA R AR MY T

Turnover

The principal activities of the Group are provision of terminal, transshipment and

storage facilities services for oil and petrochemical products.

Turnover represents port income and storage and transshipment income. The

amount of each significant category recognised in turnover during the year is as

follows:

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LOETIR)

—E
ARE2 TEEHARGES  WERE
R AR SRS -

BEERBODRARETFEREBHRA - £X
NEXBRNERZEERERSENT

Port income AR N 8,975 11,867
Storage and transshipment income BRTF R g U A 149,969 153,299
158,944 165,166

In 2009, the Group has one customer (2008: one) with whom transactions have
exceeded 10% of the Group's revenues. In 2009, revenues from provision of
storage and transshipment services to this customer, including revenues from
entities which are known to the Group to be under common control with this
customer, amounted to approximately $92 million (2008: $92 million). Details of
concentrations of credit risk arising from the Group’s major customers are set out

in note 26(a).

Further details regarding the Group's principal activities are disclosed in note 11

to these financial statements.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LETHT)

4 Other net income 4 Hitw=R FEE

Interest income FBUA 683 1,711
Net foreign exchange (loss)/gain [E X, (F518), e 558 (40) 1,062
Others Hib 936 1,078
1,579 3,851
5 Profit before taxation 5 BRBEAEF
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting): BB A E A T B (B A) TR &R
B
(a) Finance costs: (a) BAFERLA :

Interest on bank loans IRITEZF B 24,381 16,429
Less: Borrowing costs capitalised as W ENMeARTERIR
construction in progress ZIEERAR (24,381) (16,429)
The borrowing costs during 2009 have been capitalised at a rate of 4.86% — 5.18% ZEEAFAN - BERREIRFNEL86% -
per annum (2008: 5.18% — 6.97% per annum) for construction in progress. 5.18% (ZZFZN\F : 5.18% - 6.97% ) &AL A
HERETRE -

66 Hans Energy Company Limited 2B 8RB R A A



Notes to the Financial Statements

BA S AR MY T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LGETSR)

5 Profit before taxation (continved 5 BRELADREF 2

(b) BT :

(b) Staff costs:

Contributions to defined contribution M) E FE AL FGRREH I
retirement plans TEH Z 3R 1,226 966
Salaries, wages and other benefits N T& REMER] 26,333 24,527
Equity settled share-based payments =R EE 2 RDZH 3,629 6,182
Total staff costs 8 TR 31,188 31,675
(c) Other items: (¢ Hi1EH

Charitable donations BEBR - 3,353
Depreciation and amortisation e R 28,175 29,218
Auditor’s remuneration 2SR BN &

— audit services — BRI 1,180 1,180

— review services — =BT 380 380
Loss/(gain) on disposals of fixed assets HEBEFEEE BB () 12 (511)
Operating lease charges: KEREER -

minimum lease payments — buildings SEBENR—EF 5,708 5,628
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LETHT)

6 Taxation

(a) Taxation in the consolidated income statement
represents:

6 BiIE

(a) FEBBERAMBIARE

Current tax — PRC REABIE —
Enterprise Income Tax for the year FARBEPEMED 18,923 8,461
Deferred tax — origination and PRI TE —
reversal of temporary differences R ER 2 E A R B
(note 21) (Ktet21) 162 511
19,085 8,972
Notes: Htat -

(i) No Hong Kong Profits Tax was provided as the Group sustained a loss
for Hong Kong Profits Tax purposes for the year (2008: Nil).

(i) Pursuant to the approval from the PRC authority issued in 2002
regarding port operating business, one of the subsidiaries in the
PRC, Guangdong (Panyu) Petrochemical Storage & Transportation Ltd.
("GD (Panyu)") was granted certain tax relief whereby the profits for
the five years starting from its first profit-making year were exempted
from income tax in the PRC and the profits for each of the subsequent
five years were taxed at 50% of the prevailing tax rate set by the local
tax authority. The PRC Enterprise Income Tax rate applicable to GD
(Panyu) was 15%.
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6 Taxation (continued)

(a) Taxation in the consolidated income statement
represents: (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(ii)

(continued)

On 16 March 2007, the Fifth Plenary Session of the Tenth National
People’s Congress passed the Corporate Income Tax Law of the PRC
("new CIT Law") which took effect on 1 January 2008. Under the
new CIT Law and in accordance with the implementation rules and
notices issued by the State Council and the State Administration of
Taxation (collectively “Implementation Rules”), an entity established
before 16 March 2007 that was entitled to preferential tax treatments
prior to the new CIT Law would be subject to a transitional tax rate
beginning in 2008 (“Transitional Tax Rate”) before the new corporate
income tax rate of 25% applies. For companies currently enjoying
a reduced tax rate of 15%, the Transitional Tax Rate is 18%, 20%,
22%, 24% and 25% in 2008, 2009, 2010, 2011 and 2012 onwards
respectively. Under the grandfathering treatments of the new CIT Law,
GD (Panyu), which did not fully utilise its five-year tax relief upon the
implementation of the new CIT Law, would be allowed to receive the
tax relief during the five-year grandfathering period. Accordingly, the
applicable tax rate of GD (Panyu) for the year ended 31 December
2008 was 9%. The tax relief of GD (Panyu) expired on 31 December
2008 and thereafter the applicable tax rate of GD (Panyu) is 20%.

In addition, under the new CIT Law, dividends paid by a foreign-
invested enterprise to its foreign investors are subject to withholding
tax atarate of 10% unless reduced by treaty. Under the grandfathering
treatments, undistributed profits of a foreign-invested enterprise as at
31 December 2007 are exempted from withholding tax.

At 31 December 2009, temporary differences relating to the
undistributed profits of the Group's foreign-invested enterprise
amounted to $154,111,000 (2008: $81,340,000). Deferred tax
liabilities of $7,706,000 (2008: $4,067,000) have not been recognised
in respect of the tax that would be payable on the distribution of
these retained profits as the Company controls the dividend policy
of the foreign-invested enterprise and the directors have determined
that the profits will not be distributed in the foreseeable future.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LGETSR)
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LETHT)

6 Taxation (continued)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting
profit at applicable tax rate:

(b) MEARRFHE ZBIEH
BEETHEN AR

Profit before taxation R F B A ) 67,038 72,490
Notional tax on profit before tax, RERABE20%(ZFZN\F : 18%)

calculated at the applicable FTE 2 BREL AT R 2 BiTE

tax rate of 20% (2008: 18%) 13,408 13,048
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses TR 2 B2 2,450 2,042
Tax effect of non-taxable income FERBULAZ B2 (562) (679)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERWBEE 2 BT E 3,789 2,814
Effect of tax relief granted to a H BB B N RV E RS

PRC subsidiary B RE - (8,253)
Actual tax expense BRRBRIES 19,085 8,972
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LOETIR)

7 Directors’ remuneration 7 EEME
Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161 of the Hong Kong EEMeREBSQAGAEI6HEHEN
Companies Ordinance is as follows: T~
2009
—EENF
Equity
Salaries, settled
allowances Retirement share-
and benefits scheme based
Directors’ inkind  contributions payments
fee 210 = 4: R DERER
ik kRS T B ZRHBXZ
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T
Executive directors HITEF
David An HE - 3,183 30 - 3,213
Fung Chi Kwan, Nicholas BEH - 975 12 426 1,413
Liu Zhi Jun AE=E - 975 60 426 1,461
Zhang Lei RE - 1,209 12 426 1,647
Independent non-executive directors BUHHTEF
Li Wai Keung FER 120 - - 10 130
Liu Jian £ 120 - - 10 130
Chan Chun Wai, Tony BRIR(E 120 - - 10 130
360 6,342 114 1,308 8,124
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LETIT)

7 Directors’ remuneration (coninved)

7 EEME

2008
—ETNF
Equity
Salaries, settled
allowances Retirement share-
and benefits scheme based
Directors’ in kind contributions payments
fee  FB - 2RE RIK ) =5
E2HE REVERS ATEIfR
$'000 $'000 $'000
Fr T
Executive directors HiTEF
David An #E - 2,804 30 - 2,834
Fung Chi Kwan, Nicholas BE - 875 12 726 1,613
Liu Zhi Jun EE - 875 60 726 1,661
Zhang Lei RE - 1,109 12 726 1,847
Independent non-executive directors BUHHTEE
Li Wai Keung FER 120 - - 17 137
Liu Jian 2z 120 - - 17 137
Chan Chun Wai, Tony FRIR(E 120 - - 17 137
360 5,663 114 2,229 8,366

During the year, no amount was paid or payable by the Company to the Directors or
any of the five highest paid individuals set out in note 8 below as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office. There was no
arrangement under which a Director waived or agreed to waive any remuneration

during the year.
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BA R AR MY T

8 Individuals with highest emoluments

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group, four (2008: four)
are directors of the Company whose emoluments are included in the disclosure in
note 7 above. The emoluments in respect of the remaining individual (2008: one)

is as follow:

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LOETIR)

REHMAL

RAREREGRRHFMALH  Hhmz(=
ZENF  OR) AL RARFAESE  Hie
RN EXKETHRE - BT —BAL(ZEEN
Fo—B)NBSMT

Salaries and other benefits i R H A 1E 765 585
Equity settled share-based payments g EE 2R D T H 301 512

Contributions to defined contribution TE R FURIREHE
retirement plans AR 27 27
1,093 1,124

The emoluments of the remaining individual (2008: one) with the highest

emoluments is within the following band:

$1,000,001 to $1,500,000 1,000,0017C%1,500,0007T

ZEEEFHMAL(ZZZNE  —F) 2
ENFUTEE :

Number of individuals

9 Result attributable to equity shareholders
of the Company

The consolidated profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
includes a loss of $7,501,000 (2008: $8,790,000) which has been dealt with in

the financial statements of the Company.

RAFRREGEFE

ARARBEREGEZHEAEN B IEER
7,501,00070( == & J\4F : 8,790,0000T ) + H
ERARARPIEHRE AR
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LETHT)

10 Earnings per share

11

74

Basic and diluted earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit attributable to
ordinary equity shareholders of the Company of $41,746,000 (2008: $56,395,000)
and the weighted average of 3,732,638,000 ordinary shares (2008: 3,732,638,000

ordinary shares) in issue during the year.

The diluted earnings per share is the same as the basic earnings per share for the
years ended 31 December 2008 and 2009 as the outstanding share options are

anti-dilutive.

Segment reporting

The Group manages its businesses by entities, which are organised by geography.
On first-time adoption of HKFRS 8, Operating Segments and in a manner consistent
with the way in which information is reported internally to the Group’s most senior
executive management for the purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment, the Group has identified the following two reportable segments.
No operating segments have been aggregated to form the following reportable

segments.

- Xiao Hu Island Terminal (“XHIT"): this segment represents the Group's
provision of terminal, transshipment and storage activities carried out in

Panyu, the People’s Republic of China ("PRC").

- Dongzhou International Terminal (“DZIT"): this segment represents the
Group's provision of terminal, transshipment and storage activities to be
carried out in Dongguan, PRC. DZIT is currently under construction and is

expected to commence its business operations in mid 2010.

Hans Energy Company Limited % B 8RB R A 7

10 ERER

11

BREXAREBERF

BREXRBANNIBEFARQ A Z EBR
f% 38 FE 1 & 741,746,000 0( —Z T T N\ F ¢
56,395,000 ) R B BT E @R ME T H
£03,732,638,0000% & @ R( =T T )\ F -
3,732,638,000/% L @Ak ) et & o

.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LGETSR)

1 2EHRE
(a) PEpEE  -EERERE

11 Segment reporting (continved)

(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and allocating resources
between segments, the Group’s senior executive management monitors the
results, assets and liabilities attributable to each reportable segment on the

following bases:

Segment assets include all tangible, intangible assets and current assets
with the exception of investments in subsidiaries and other corporate assets.
Segment liabilities include other payables and accruals, deferred revenue
and current taxation payable attributable to the individual segments, and

bank borrowings managed directly by the segments.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable segments with
reference to revenue generated by those segments and expenses incurred
by those segments or which otherwise arise from the depreciation or

amortisation of assets attributable to those segments.

The measure used for reporting segment profit is “profit from operations”
i.e. "adjusted earnings before finance costs and taxes”. To arrive at “profit
from operations”, the Group’s earnings are further adjusted for items
not specifically attributed to individual segments, such as head office or

corporate administration costs.

In addition to receiving segment information concerning profit from
operations, management is provided with segment information concerning
revenue, interest income, finance costs and additions to non-current segment

assets.

Information regarding the Group's reportable segments provided to the
Group's most senior executive management for the purposes of resource
allocation and assessment of segment performance for the years ended 31
December 2009 and 2008 is set out below.

RAEBIBERESESBERMS
AEBGSETHREEASRBUTE
MERSAREDBEIECER B
RBIE:

7 #B éé EMERVEE  BIVEE
ERBEE  ETEERHELRZEK
BERHEAM Té“? DEBEREEM
ENFIERGRER - RIERE K E 5
DEEMEZARHIE - WRBEDEHEE
ERZRITIES ©

WARSZ M 2RA MmE D MAEEZ W
ARZEDAMEE 2 B NZEDF
IEEBEMELZITEXEIHESR -

R BRANARBZIDERIMEE R
AL BILRET BT AR R AR IR BT 2 465
BRN] BERKLEN] AEHE
il Efl?ﬂ—*rﬁﬁi%ﬂ%ﬂ“*ﬁziﬁ H
(Fn#E AP A B THUR A ) 1R T EE o

BESHERELEENZOMERIN &
EEIMERHAREA - MBWA - B
BRARFIGIERBEE 2D BER -

BE_ZZAFR-_TTN\F+- ﬁ =
T—BLLFE  AERETAEER
BITHEEABNLS @Eﬁﬁ&qﬂﬁ“*
KRB ZEMBIINTX -
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LETHT)

11 Segment reporting (continved)

(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued)

(a) % E -BEEREE®)

XHIT
PNRALE

Reportable segment revenue A ¥RE D EBUA 158,944 165,166
Reportable segment profit BE R dvinril

from operations 98,633 99,975
Interest income B U A 666 1,070
Finance costs IR IDFIN - -

DZIT is under construction and not yet commenced its business operations
as at 31 December 2009 and accordingly, no segment information regarding
the segment’s revenue, profit from operations, interest income and finance

costs for the years ended 31 December 2009 and 2008 are presented.

XHIT
PRBLE

RMNAEERETHRT  R-_FF
TZAZ=tT—HHARRMAEERESE

NE

it EERSFIEMBRE-TEAER
SEEN\FToASH-ALFEZS
B AT - RS RATBR

A2 P EER -

DZIT
FMALE

Reportable segment assets AHREDBEE 1,136,924 716,551
Reportable segment liabilities ARENHBE 956,915 485,659
Additions to non-current REE+-ZRA=+—H

segment assets during the HFEREMZ

year ended 31 December EREHBEE 16,033 26,793
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11 Segment reporting (continved)

(b) Reconciliations of reportable segment revenues,
profit or loss, assets and liabilities

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LGETSR)

1M1 o\ E @)

(b) AMETHBA - BiE - &
EREBBEZHIR

Revenue KA
Reportable segment revenue A $RE D EBUA 158,944 165,166
Consolidated turnover REEER 158,944 165,166

Profit e
Reportable segment Al ¥ o B AS & e A

profit from operations 98,633 99,975
Unallocated other net income RoBeE M F /R 27 3,070
Unallocated head office ROBBBRATZ T

and corporate expenses (31,622) (30,555)
Consolidated profit before taxation SLAEBRBANRF 67,038 72,490

Assets BE
Reportable segment assets AREDBEE 2,170,993 1,326,550
Elimination of inter-segment receivables SR o> BRI 2 E W B (548,359) (264,850)
1,622,634 1,061,700
Unallocated head office ROBABRAREE
and corporate assets 24,937 36,230
Consolidated total assets REmEE 1,647,571 1,097,930
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LETHT)

11 Segment reporting (wntinved) 11 ZEHE =)
(b) Reconciliations of reportable segment revenues, (b) AIREDHBWA 8 &
profit or loss, assets and liabilities (continued) ENEaEzYHE®)

Liabilities afE
Reportable segment liabilities AREDHBEE 1,596,639 818,381
Elimination of inter-segment payables R EH D ED 2 FEAT 5RIE (548,359) (264,850)
1,048,280 553,531
Unallocated head office and ROoMEBLRAFEE
corporate liabilities 8,186 5,743
Consolidated total liabilities REBAaE 1,056,466 559,274
(c) Geographic information (c) HEER
The following table sets out information about the geographical location of TRETIE BN EERING TSRS
(i) the Group's revenue from external customers and (ii) the Group's fixed ZWARWAEEZETEEE - EFE
assets, intangible assets, non-current prepayments (“specified non-current E RSB ZE(EEIFERDE
assets”). The geographical location of customers is based on the location at EFTEM R 2 AR o P FIEM R A
which the services were provided. The geographical location of the specified RERG 2B AERE - IREFRBE
non-current assets is based on the physical location of the asset. EFEMRIAE E 2 BRI U B A K
R
Revenues from Specified
external customers non-current assets
IMNBEF B ZWBA EEXRBEE

Hong Kong B - - 4,086 3,186
PRC (excluding Hong Kong) FE(TEEES) 158,944 165,166 1,287,715 852,656
158,944 165,166 1,291,801 855,842
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LGETAR)

12 Fixed assets 12 BEEE
(@) The Group (a) =&EH

Dock

and

storage

facilities

Buildings ~ TBER
B FERE
§1000 $'000
T T

Office

equipment
HAZ
R
§'000
T

Leasehold

Motor improvements

vehicles
e
§'000
it

il
VES
§'000
trn

Interests in

[easehold

[and held

for own

use under

operating

leases

Construction RESERE
Subtotal inprogress  BAEER
Nt RBIR ZiibEd
§'000 §'000 §'000
T T T

Total
Fived
assets
EEEE
e
§1000
T

Cost: BA:
At 1 January 2009 RZZENE-A-H 14988 512,703 3802 11,346 149 542988 509,716 42823 1,095,527
Eichange adjustments EifE U 816 4 1 - 861 1,269 67 2197
Additions BhE - 918 160 1215 - 223 440911 - 43204
Transfer from prepaymens for acquiston of and AR LB RERAIE

use rghts (rote 14) E\WiE 1 - - - - - - 569% - 6%
Disposal ik - (818) - - - (818) - - (818)
Trandlr 3 - 93 - - - 93 (993) - -
At 31 December 2009 RZZENETZA=T-B 15012 514612 3,966 12578 149 546317 976,598 42,890 1,565,805
Accumulated depreciation and amortisation; ZHERES
At 1 January 2009 RZZENE-R-A 5535 7,078 1553 6,864 14 262,154 - 19934 282,088
Bxchange adjustments EjRE 9 )| 4 1 - 35 - /) 47
Charge forthe year ERFEREH S M4 [T Wi} U 241 B K V1
Witen back on disposals RiERER - (19) - - - (192) - - (19)
At 31 December 2009 RZZFNETZA=T-R 6,118 270,908 3,006 8,091 148 288M - 1467 309,738
Net book value: REFE:
At31 Decemter 2009 REEAFTCA=1-H 889 23,704 %0 448 1 B8MG 976598 21413 1,256,067
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LETIT)

12 Fixed assets (continued)

(@) The Group (continued)

Buildings
&2
§1000
n

Investment

property

12 EEEE®
(a) KB (&)

Dock
and

storage i{ Leasehold

faclities equipment

Motor improvements

vlides  BE  Subtotdl
000 g0 s000
n

Interests in
leasehold
[and held
for own
Use under
operating
leases

Construction
inprogress ¥ {ERA
FRIE s1itEs
§1000 §000
. Tn

(nate (c)

Cost: Ak

At 1 January 2008 NZT2/\E-A-8 14438 2060 483,44 349 10,15 149 513678 2491% 40330 803,204
Exchange adjustments E}AE 888 105 296% 165 58 -4 94 248 53393
Additions HE - - 644 1% 602 B 154 1178 - M
Disposals e (338) (37 (197) (%) - - (4,752) - - (475)
Transler &% - - 1,04 - - - 10 (1074) - -
At 31 December 2008 RZZBNFTZA=T-R 14,988 - 51703 3800 11346 19 52988 509716 42813 1,095,527
Accumulated depreciation and amortisation; EERES:

At 1 January 2008 W-Z3%/\E-A-R 4758 601 210,099 2,089 5349 B MR - 11361 U030
Exchange adjustments EiEE 0 B B3 0 n - 10 - 105 1515
Chargefor e e FEFEREY T N S AR B TN 1111 SR B
Witen back on disposals MHERED (13 (5 (1 - - s - T
At 31 December 2008 RZZBNFTZA=T-R 5935 - U8 1553 6,804 124 260,154 - 1993 282,088
Net book value: BEFE:

At 31 December 2008 RZZE\ErZf=T-A 9453 - 065605 1,249 448 5 1084 509716 22889 813439
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LETTIT)
. [— " -
12 Fixed assets (continved) 12 BIEEE )

(b) Construction in progress as at 31 December 2009 comprises costs incurred (b) R—ZZhF+-A=+—R2zHER
on the acquisition of land use rights and the construction of port and TREEREMNALE R RAIER
storage facilities at DZIT and XHIT, totalling $904 million and $73 million B AEREREORETFRIEZ
(2008: $477 million and $33 million), respectively which are expected to RARE HI.0MET ROTZEIL(ZZTTN
commence operations in 2010. F4TMEILR03318IT) - MIE LR

BER T -TFRMAEEBLEE -

(c) The Group was granted the rights to use the land by the PRC authorities () AeEREFEKRFHKERT it
with lease terms of 50 years. The net book value as at 31 December 2009 #HEBRF - RZTETNF T
includes an amount of $1,502,000 (2008: $1,500,000) which is disclosed A=t BZEEREERNEESHE
as interest in land held for own use under operating leases under current 1,502,0007t( = & & J\ 4 : 1,500,000
assets. L) ERMEBEEER T 2RELE

HEREFER DS TIRE -

(d) The Company (d) AT

Office equipment

WOAERE

Cost: R

At 1 January »n—HA—AH 736 701
Exchange adjustment HE 4, 58 28 1 35
At 31 December R+ZA=+—H 737 736
Accumulated depreciation: REtiE .

At 1 January »n—A—H 522 358
Exchange adjustment ERTEE 1 20
Charge for the year FEFE 146 144
At 31 December R+ZA=+—H 669 522
Net book value: BREFE :

At 31 December R+ZA=+—H 68 214
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LETHT)
13 Intangible assets 13 BELEE
The Group
REE
Club membership
25

Cost: 0%

At 1 January w—A—H 3,770 2,242

Exchange adjustment HE 4, 3 22 1 28

Additions NE - 1,500

At 31 December R+—-—A=+—H 3,771 3,770

Accumulated amortisation: Z5HE .

At 1 January »n—HA—H 390 263

Exchange adjustment HE 3, 58 B 1 2

Charge for the year FEHH 200 125

At 31 December R+ZA=+—H 591 390

Net book value: BRIENFE :

At 31 December R+—-—A=+—H 3,180 3,380
The amortisation charge for the year is included in “administrative expenses” in REREZBHEERAFAAGERERITTHRE
the consolidated income statement. A lH .
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LGETAR)

14 Prepayments for acquisition of land use 14 B T b fE A 2 TR FRIE
rights

The Group

At 1 January m—H—H 25,695 -
Additions b i - 25,695
Transfer to construction in progress EAERETE
(note 12(a)) (Mizt12(a) (25,695) -
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—8H - 25,695
15 Investments in subsidiaries 15 AMBARZRE
The Group

Unlisted equities, at cost FELETRRG + HRAAR 1,051,500 1,051,500
Amount due from a subsidiary Bl —RMEARFIE 2,839 2,830
1,054,339 1,054,330
The amount due from a subsidiary is unsecured, interest free and have no fixed W —RMERR 2 RERLEEMR . 28
terms of repayment. i B & E &R o
The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries which principally TREHINFTEZEREEXRE  EENA
affected the results, assets or liabilities of the Group. BB ARFS -
All of these are controlled subsidiaries as defined under note 1(c) and have been RBEWMFNORTE - ZENBR R AN
consolidated into the Group financial statements. BAR - WEAHARER ZGEMBHRE -
Details of the Company's principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2009 are as RARBRZZZNF+T_A=+—H2ZxZ
follows: MEARZFBENT
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LETIT)

15 Investments in subsidiaries (contines 15 RMB AR Z2RE @)

Particulars

of issued and

paid up
Place of share capital/ Attributable
incorporation/ registered capital equity interest
Name of Place of establishment BETR PEfk iR Principal
subsidiary operation HEMRL/ BERE Directly Indirectly activities
) NG RE A RIZ % MR AFEE =k Lif TEXK
Guangdong Hong Kong Hong Kong Ordinary shares - 100% Provision of
Petro-Chemicals /B B - $20,000,000 administrative
Company %38 0%20,000,0007C services
Limited REBRIRE
BERMEIERAR
Oriental Point Hong Kong Hong Kong Ordinary shares - 100% Inactive
International EiE BB - $1,000,000 EEEd
Limited E3A0%1,000,0007C
REERERAR
Timeslink Hong Kong Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100% - Provision of
Development /B B -$10,000 administrative
Limited E3mA%10,0007T services
BRBERERARF REPRIRH
Union Petro- Hong Kong British Ordinary shares 100% - Investment
Chemicals /B Virgin Islands - Us$100 holding
(BVI) REEIHE LER005%TT Company
Limited ("UPC") REZR

ERBAEARCTERAR
("EREA')

GD (Panyu) PRC PRC RMB220,000,000 - 92% Terminal, storage and
B (ER) H H AR#220,000,0007C transshipment
B ey

BMAHEARILT PRC PRC RMB4,820,800 - 92% Investment
BERERAT HE HE AR H4,820,8007T holding
("HIEAL") REZK
ReEmaEMERAL PRC PRC RMB349,610,000 - 92% Terminal, storage and
BRERAT H H AR¥349,610,0007C transshipment
("RIMEE") B e ks

Note: GD (Panyu) is a sino-foreign equity joint venture company and A 1L and B MFaE - g(%% >%_‘%$7|\é%@\a CREA
BB are limited liability companies. {EERNBERER—RKBREELRA -
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BF R ER AR T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LAETIIR)
16 Trade and other receivables 16 ES R EMEWFIE
The Group The Company
KEE AT

Trade receivables & 5 WA 10,824 9,234 - -
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts B RIERREE
(note 16(b)) (Bt 16(b)) (5.925) (5,915) - -
4,899 3,319 - -
Prepayments and other receivables TE R RRIE B H A FE UG IR 4,048 4,045 358 358
8,947 7,364 358 358
The amount of the Group's and the Company's prepayments and other receivables REBRKARRABEHR —FEREIHAERR
expected to be recovered or recognised as expenses after more than one year is B 2 AT IR N E R WK IE /31,139,000
$1,139,000 (2008: $1,458,000) and $Nil (2008: $Nil) respectively. Apart from TT(ZZTZTN\EF 1 1,458,00070) RE( =TT )N
these, the prepayments and other receivables are expected to be recovered or F ) o BRibZ AN - TEAT FRIE K E b FE UK
recognised as expenses within one year. RIEHER—FAREFARBER -
. . . 3 =p
(a) Trade receivables that are not impaired (a) KRREESEBWFE
Subject to negotiation, credit is generally only available to major customers BT BRERME  BRERE—REET
with well-established trading records. The Group allows an average credit ARURSRBEZEREF - ARG
period of 30 days to its trade customers. Further details on the Company's TESEFP TR ZGES - BRAA
credit policy are set out in note 26(a). RAEEBRZE—DHBHNME
26(a) °
The ageing analysis of trade receivables that are neither individually nor W IEE B sk AR EREZ ERE 5
collectively considered to be impaired are as follows: HIBZRERATAOT ¢
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B 5 R AR B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LETHT)

16 ESRHMEKRFIE®
(a) RBEEZEWFIE @)

16 Trade and other receivables (woniinved

(a) Trade receivables that are not impaired (continved)

The Group
rEE

Neither past due nor impaired KRBT RRE 4,667 3,319
Less than 1 month past due B E DR —1{E A 232 -
4,899 3,319

(b)

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to an independent
customer that has good track records with the Group. Based on past
experience, management believes that no impairment allowance is necessary
in respect of this balance as there has not been a significant change in credit
quality and the balance is considered fully recoverable. The Group does not

hold any collateral over this balance.

Impairment of trade receivables

Impairment losses in respect of trade receivables are recorded using an
allowance account unless the Group is satisfied that recovery of the amount
is remote, in which case the impairment loss is written off against trade

receivables directly (see note 1(g)(i)).

At 31 December 2009, the Group's trade receivables of $5,925,000
(2008: $5,915,000) were individually determined to be impaired. The
individually impaired receivables related to customers that were in financial
difficulties and management assessed that the receivables are not expected
to be recovered. Consequently, specific allowances for doubtful debts of
$5,925,000 (2008: $5,915,000) were recognised. The Group does not hold

any collateral over these balances.

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts during the year represents

the effect of change in exchange rates.
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FEBBRIFLSCBILITFER - R
RRAELR  EEERERECERZE
BIELRERE - ARREFPZEEE
EUWEEANBH AR RF AT
2 UE o REE N M %A RS ER
HH -

B 5 RURIE ZRE

B 5 MR 2 8 B 1R A B R IR D
8 EHARBEIREAMRBEZ K EE
BAE - BIE & B 5 R YRR 8
(RFFFEUGN)) °

RZZEZAF+_RA=+—0 K&
EEREBEERECE SHERFER
5,925,0007t( = & = )\ £ : 5,915,000
7T) o [ERRE 2 B IR B A B B
$rEFEH  BEEIHZSEER
BEREERE - Bt - BHERSTERIZE
FE4#5,925,0000T (ZZ =\ 5,915,000
To) o AREBEWER U EEBRITEEMR
@

FRAREEREZEHREZZEHNT
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LETTIT)
17 Cash and cash equivalents 17 RERREEEER
(a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise: (a) RERHAELEEEBEHBE
The Group The Company
EH A

Time deposits T BATF 3K 159,001 5,732 - 5,732
Other cash and cash equivalents HEiIRe MRS EMEIER 183,420 224,299 3,755 1,781
342,421 230,031 3,755 7,513
(b) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash (b) BRBANRRERE XK G
generated from operations: REZHE

Profit before taxation PR T A1 Al 67,038 72,490
Adjustments for: BATEEELTRE
Interest income FBWA 4 (683) (1,711)
Depreciation and amortisation e M 5H 5(c) 28,175 29,218
Equity settled share-based payment expenses AR 2 R0 sz 5(b) 3,629 6,182
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, HEWE - BE X
plant and equipment B2 EE (M) 5(c) 12 (511)
Exchange differences IEH =% (66) (306)
Changes in working capital: EEEe BE)
Decrease/(increase) in GErEAERNY
inventories — consumable parts WA/ (3E ) 298 (344)
(Increase)/decrease in trade B 5 K H e d R IE
and other receivables (), mb (1,572) 6,723
Increase/(decrease) in other payables H b e R, Cld) 4,166 (3,742)
Decrease in deferred revenue IEIEW SR (91,391) (91,413)
Cash generated from operations KEEBRMERSE 9,606 16,586
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LETIT)

18 Other payables and accruals

All of the other payables and accruals, apart from retention payables of $12,003,000
(2008: $8,843,000) that are expected to be settled after one year, are expected to

be settled within one year.

19 Deferred revenue

18 HiEANRERIRER

& FEHR B £ R IE 12,003,000 ( —FZ )\ F:
8,843,0007T ) FEHIR —F B BTN - FTE HAtb
ENFRIEREHEE A TESRN —FRNEN -

19 IESE W &

The Group
AEE

Within one year —FR 38,527 95,471
More than one year, but not Bl —FETBAMRE
exceeding two years - 34,318
38,527 129,789
Less: Amount due within one year B MEBBEE TR
shown under current liabilities —FREEzE5HE (38,527) (95,471)
Amount due after one year —FIEIIB &5 - 34,318

88

On 29 December 2004, the Group entered into a lease agreement (the “Lease
Agreement”) with a third party (the "Lessee”) for the lease of certain oil storage
tanks of the Group (the "Qil Storage Tanks") and the non-exclusive use of related
transshipment, docking, loading and unloading facilities for a period of 20 years
from the date of delivery of the use of the Oil Storage Tanks at an annual rental of
approximately $90 million. Pursuant to the Lease Agreement, the Group received
five years' rentals of approximately $490 million upon signing of the Lease
Agreement and is obliged to pass the right to use part of the Oil Storage Tanks to

the Lessee on 1 January 2005.

Hans Energy Company Limited J2 B EEIRB R A A

—EEEF+_A-tHhR AEEEE=
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B SRR T
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LETTIT)
/= 5 %
20 Bank loans 20 SRITERM
At 31 December 2009, the bank loans are repayable as follows: RZZZNF+-A=+—08 RITENE
R AR (EE -

The Group

Within 1 year or on demand B — 5 A gl B SRR 397,502 -
After 1 year but within 2 years —FIREMFRN 204,430 95,021
After 2 years but within 5 years MEZBRFRA 295,162 245,155
499,592 340,176
897,094 340,176
At 31 December 2009, the bank loans are secured as follows: RIZZNFT-A=+—RH ROTEKRZ
HFBEROT
The Group
AEH

Bank loans HRITER

— secured —FiEH 669,950 340,176

— unsecured — IR 227,144 -

897,094 340,176
At 31 December 2009, the Group has banking facilities totalling $750,218,000 RZZZNF+_A=+—H AEEZR
(2008: $608,915,000), of which $738,218,000 (2008: $608,915,000) were 1TRVEREE A $£750,218,00070( — T )\ 4F -
secured by certain of the Group's future non-cancellable operating lease receivables 608,915,0007T ) + H F1738,218,000t( = F =
(see note 27(b)). The facilities were utilised to the extent of $669,950,000 (2008: J\F : 608,915,0007T ) JH AR EE B E T RN
$340,176,000). B A4S R S R UK IE (R EE27(b)) 1B K

- BEBE 2R & 5E/E £669,950,000T( =&
= \4E : 340,176,0007C) °
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LETHT)

20 Bank loans (continued)

One of the Group's banking facilities of $12,000,000 (2008: $Nil) are subject
to the fulfilment of covenants relating to the Group's net asset position, as are
commonly found in lending arrangements with financial institutions. If the Group
were to breach the covenants, the drawn down facilities would become payable
on demand. The Group regularly monitors its compliance with these covenants.
Further details of the Group's management of liquidity risk are set out in note
26(b). As at 31 December 2009, no draw down was made in respect of the facility
(2008: $Nil).

21 Income tax in the balance sheet 21

(@) Current taxation in the balance sheet represents:

20 SRITER )

AEBEHE AP —F 1784 §/512,000,0007T
(ZZEN\F  B)EREAHASEEE
SFEMR 2 ZHERR - ZEZLHBENE
CRBEBITIZERLHFRER - WAEE
ERBEMZH AREERARBRANE
B AEBTHERNER®ZET BH
AEBEEBRESRBERR ZF BRI E
26(b)c RZEZANF+=_A=+—HB &%
EVESAZERE(ZTTNF &) -

EEEB/RPZHMER
(a) EEEBERPZAMBIRE:

FARBEDEMSH 2 EE

Provision for PRC Enterprise
Income Tax for the year

4,707 2,125

(b) Deferred tax liabilities recognised:

The movements of deferred tax liabilities during the year are as follows:
(i) The Group

BRFIRKE -

Deferred tax arising from.

(b) CERELEHEERS :

FREEFIEAGEESBERET ¢
()  AEE

Construction in progress

HEIRE

At 1 January ®n—A—AH 7,803 6,861
Exchange adjustment ERTEEE 12 431
Charged to income statement (note 6(a)) PIBEE R (K7526(a) 162 511
At 31 December R+ZA=+—H 7,977 7,803
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21 Income tax in the balance sheet (continved)

(c) Deferred tax not recognised:

() In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 1(m), the
Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect of the
cumulative tax losses of approximately $100 million (2008: $84
million) as it is not probable that future taxable profits against
which the losses can be utilised will be available in the relevant tax
jurisdiction and entity. The tax losses do not expire under the current

tax legislation.

(i) At 31 December 2009, temporary differences relating to the
undistributed profits of the Group’s foreign-invested enterprise
amounted to $154,111,000 (2008: $81,340,000). Deferred tax
liabilities of $7,706,000 (2008: $4,067,000) have not been recognised
in respect of the tax that would be payable on the distribution of
these retained profits as the Company controls the dividend policy
of the foreign-invested enterprise and the Directors have determined

that the profits will not be distributed in the foreseeable future.

22 Employee retirement benefits

The employees of GD (Panyu), M EIEE and & A 1L are members of a state-
managed retirement benefit scheme operated by the PRC government. GD (Panyu),
MR and FIBA1L are required to contribute a certain percentage of the
salaries, bonuses and certain allowances of its staff to the retirement scheme. The
only obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement benefit scheme is to
make the required contribution under the scheme. The Group has no other material
obligation for the payment of pension benefits associated with this scheme beyond
the annual contributions described above.

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“the MPF scheme”)
under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees
employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF
scheme is a defined contribution retirement plan administered by independent
trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the employer and its employees are each required
to make contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject
to a cap of monthly relevant income of $20,000. Contributions to the plan vest
immediately.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LGETSR)

21 EERBRPZHBEHR @)

() RERIELEFIE !

() IBEMEIMPAIEZ 5T HE
REBEEBRRTAANERNERA
Tt 75 A HE 2 A FE AR 0 I LA
HAEBER AEBRERRE
REBENEBET(ZETNF:
8400B L) ERIELERIAEE - 1B

BROTBZE  HEBBLSERER
Hy o

iy R=ZZTZhF+=ZA=+—8"
BAEBEIINEREZ RS EF
BHEBEzREYREEZEZAH
£154,111,0000( = T T )\ F ¢
81,340,0007T) * ANAFIKRB RIS
K It 55 oK 93 B A B i R A 2 B 1E
T RIE IE T I8 B 157,706,0007T( =
??)\E 4,067,0007T) * [REZ
z]: EHZIINEDEZ KRB
ﬁﬁé%A REFEGRAR
;HJKM&E% ALZADEEFIE -

22 EERKER

BE(ES) RMNERRPERILZEER
PEBAARIEZ BRERBRBHEZ
KB - BE(ES) RMERETPEAE
REBIZHM TARE T EM2FEEE

AR KRG B o BZRIKEFIET &

ms K%@Z%*f&ﬁ*ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ%%ﬁ’ﬁﬁ
Fifs 2 3k o Br Bt G FHFIN - NEBETE
ZETEIRR ﬁiiﬁmf‘ﬁﬁl/ﬂ\ﬁﬁtiﬁﬁﬂ
-

AEBETARELRBEIERZES R
E%i’é%ﬁ HEAEESEEEMRBRFER

MEstE((REEesa)) - BESFET—
FEHBYZFEAETE 2 REHRFRKEE -
RipwiEesitd EXREERASBRESR
BRBAZ%mE BIEL M HAEZ AR
B A20,0007T BIR - [T BIEH Z kAR
FETER -
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LETHT)

23 Equity settled share-based transactions 23 UESFEEZRORS

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on 16 December 2002, the Company BEZTT-_F+ A+ "BBBz—BY
adopted a share option scheme (the “scheme”) for the purpose of enabling the BIREE - ARARM —Iﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁé%‘l‘iﬂ(fﬁi
Company to recruit and retain high-calibre employees and attract resources that P&l RS EARRGEUEFRERAS
are available to the Group and to provide the Company with a means of giving BYEE MWEHAEEEEEZER &
incentive to, rewarding, remunerating, compensating and/or providing benefits RARFREMEBRAZEHAEEFTRERK
to such persons who contribute or may bring benefit to the Group. The scheme R 2 ANEEL SR - 25 - W®E -
remains in force for a period of 10 years from adoption of such scheme and expires ERSIRHET o ZETEBERME AL
on 15 December 2012. TFEHEA—EAN  WHR=ZT—Z—F+=

A+HBER -

On 7 May 2008, the Board approved to grant options in respect of 72,400,000 RZZETZN\FRALH EFSHEREZ
ordinary shares to the Company’s directors and senior management under the EMARREZERSREBAERES R
scheme. Details are as follow: 72,400,0008% & AR~ REARKE - BRAFIBAT ¢
(i)  The terms and conditions of the grants are as follows: (i) BEBREZGRREEHET
Contractual
Number of life of
options Vesting conditions options
BRERE SRR BREZE NHR
Options granted to directors: 26,100,000 One third on each of the 3 years
—on 7 May 2008 grant date, first and =
BTEZ7ERE : second anniversaries of
——ZZN\FRALH grant date

BRERSE - B5E
ME—(ERAFH
BR=H2—

Options granted to employees: 46,300,000 One third on each of the 3 years
—on 7 May 2008 grant date, first and =
BT ES 2 BhE second anniversaries of
——ZZN\FERALH grant date

BRERHA  BE
K& (HBF A
BR=D2—

Total share options 72,400,000
fBR R N
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23 Equity settled share-based transactions (continued)

(i) The number and weighted average exercise prices of options are as

follows:

Outstanding at 1 January 2008

WZEENF—HA—RZRITE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(KBTTHIT)

23 LIREEZROBRS

(i) FEREZ BA RINEFHITERENT

Weighted
average

exercise

price

IREFIGITIEE

Number of
options
B E

Granted during 2008 ZEZN\FAREH 0.5 72,400,000
Outstanding at 31 December RZZZNFR_ZFTNF
2008 and 2009 +—A=+—8BXk7f&E 0.5 72,400,000

Exercisable at 31 December IS

2008 and 2009 (note 23(iii) + = A=+—B a1 (M a7 23(i) - -

RZBZNFT A=+ —HZRITEBR
BZITEEROSTT - MMEF RS WHIR
731355 o FNAAIT AT IR AHE o

The options outstanding at 31 December 2009 had an exercise price of $0.5
and a weighted average remaining contractual life of 1.35 years. No share

options were granted or exercised during the year.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(L8TTHR)

23 Equity settled share-based transactions (continued)

Fair value of options granted during 2008 and assumptions

The fair value of services received in return for options granted are measured
by reference to the fair value of options granted. The estimate of the fair
value of the services received is measured based on the Black-Scholes model.

The contractual life of the option is used as an input into this model.

23 LIRREEZROBRS »)

(ifi)

“ZRNFARHBREZ AR BRI

=L
Aax

R BREARBAERBZ ANE
T2EMXHEREZ ANETE <
RS 2 A St (BIATA N 50 — &F B9 A7 B4
EEEAGE - BREZAEOFHBIE
WRAZEEER -

S LC:

Fair value at measurement date RetEERZARE

Share price at measurement date RETEERZR(E

Exercise price 1TE(E

Expected volatility (expressed TEE R IR (AR H 5 —
as a weighted average volatility TR HTEAREE
used in the modelling under BRI TR Z Nk
the Black-Scholes model) R IERE)

Option life (expressed as a TEETRE IR R
weighted average life used in (LAtaH5e — &7 R AT
the modelling under the HreErERAMAZ
Black-Scholes model) g FERE)

Expected dividends TEHIAR B

Risk free interest rate 25 [ B 1| 2=

$ 0.14397C
$  0.48507T
$ 0.50007TC

60%

3 years
3
Nil
113

A

2.1%

94

The expected volatility is based on the historic volatility (calculated based
on the weighted average remaining life of the options), adjusted for any
expected changes to future volatility due to publicly available information.
Expected dividends are based on historical dividends. Changes in the

subjective input assumptions could materially affect the fair value estimate.

Options were granted under a market condition. The share options can only
be exercised when the market price of the shares of the Company is $1.2
per share or above. This condition has been taken into account in the grant

date fair value measurement.

Hans Energy Company Limited 2B 8RB R A A
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LETIIR)

24 Share capital 24 B

The Company
AN

Number of

ordinary shares

LERHA
'000
Fh&

Ordinary shares of $0.10 each: SREEIOTZEER :

Authorised: JETE

At 31 December 2008 and 2009 RZBEZNFR-_EEAF+-A=+—H 10,000,000 1,000,000

Issued and fully paid: EEITRHE -

At 31 December 2008 and 2009 RZBEENGFRZZEZNF+=ZA=+—H 3,732,638 373,264
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from L@RIE A AR BRI RS k3R
time to time and are entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the Company. All B UWERRARAEZLLEER—ZERE
ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the Company's residual assets. RR-EEBREARAFHGKEETEHA

EES: AN
25 Reserves 25 f#1%
The Company ¥ N

Share-based

Share  Translation compensation Accumulated

premium reserve reserve losses
RAEE EXRE ROFGMGEE - RAEE
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fr T T T
At 1 January 2008 RZEZEN\F—A—H 710,477 312 - (19,348) 691,441
Equity settled share-based transaction INEREEZRNRS - - 6,182 - 6,182
Total comprehensive income for the year FAZERABE - (857) - (8,790) (9,647)
At 31 December 2008 RZZEN\F+ZA=+—8 710,477 (545) 6,182 (28,138) 687,976
At 1 January 2009 RZZEENF-—FA—H 710,477 (545) 6,182 (28,138) 687,976
Equity settled share-based transaction INEREEZRNRS - - 3,629 - 3,629
Total comprehensive income for the year ERNEERANEE - 3 - (7,501) (7,498)
At 31 December 2009 RZZEAF+ZA=1+—8 710,477 (542) 9,811 (35,639) 684,107
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LETHT)

25 Reserves (continved)

96

The Company (continued)

The Company's reserves available for distribution to its shareholders comprise share
premium and accumulated losses which in aggregate amounted to approximately
$675 million as at 31 December 2009 (2008: $682 million). Under the Companies
Law (Revised) of the Cayman Islands, the share premium of the Company is available
for paying distributions or dividends to shareholders subject to the provisions of its
memorandum and articles of association and provided that immediately following
the payment of distribution or dividends, the Company is able to pay its debts as
they fall due in the ordinary course of business. In accordance with the Company's
articles of association, distributions shall be payable out of the profits or other

reserves, including the share premium account, of the Company.

Capital management

The Group's primary objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an

optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

Consistent with industry practice, the Group monitors its capital structure on the
basis of a net debt-to-capital ratio. For this purpose the Group defines net debt
as total debt (which includes interest-bearing loans and borrowings), less cash
and cash equivalents. Capital is calculated as shareholders’ funds plus net debt

or minus net cash.

During 2009, the Group's strategy, which was unchanged from 2008, was to
maintain the net debt-to-adjusted capital ratio at an appropriate level. In order to
maintain or adjust the ratio, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid
to shareholders, issue new shares, return capital to shareholders, raise new debt

financing or sell assets to reduce debt.

The net debt-to-capital ratio was 0.17 and 0.48 as at 31 December 2008 and
2009 respectively.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries is subject to externally imposed

capital requirements.

Hans Energy Company Limited % E 8RB R A 7
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26 Financial risk management and fair values

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks arises in the normal
course of the Group's business. The Group’s exposure to these risks and the
financial risk management policies and practices used by the Group to manage

these risks are described below.

(a) Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and other receivables
and cash and cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents are normally
placed at financial institutions that have sound credit rating. Management
has a credit policy in place and the exposures to these credit risks are

monitored on an ongoing basis.

(i) Trade and other receivables

In respect of trade and other receivables, individual credit evaluations
are performed on all customers requiring credit over a certain
amount. These evaluations focus on the customer’s past history of
making payments when due and current ability to pay, and take into
account information specific to the customer as well as pertaining
to the economic environment in which the customer operates. Trade
receivables are due within 30 days from the date of billing. Debtors
with balances that are more than 1 month past due are requested to
settle all outstanding balances before any further credit is granted.

Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral from customers.

The Group's exposure to creditrisk is influenced mainly by the individual
characteristics of each customer rather than the industry and country
in which customers operate and therefore significant concentration of
credit risk primarily arise when the Group has significant exposure to
individual customers. At the balance sheet date, the Group has certain
concentration of credit risk as 7% (2008: 13%) of the total trade and
other receivables (net of allowance for impairment of doubtful debts)

was due from the Group's five largest customers.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group's exposure
to credit risk arising from trade and other receivables are set out in

note 16.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LETAR)

26 UHEBEERQAE

EE-EeRBE  AERREEAREGNA
%@%*h%%ﬁﬁ¢§$°ﬁ%ﬂﬁ§§
AEENFBEERRELRER(ETOME
e

(a) FEER

AEENEERRFEREE HREM
BYFERB e RREEEEE - i
MR SEBEBEFHNEETRAR
FraomgE EEEEMENREER
F o WEREEEMAINEERR

()  EZRAMEKRIE

REIREMERHRETE
RIIEEXRBBETEESEL
BRI RTEBEENG - 1t
SHAITHEPBENERN
ﬁﬁ&ﬁhmﬁﬁ%ﬁ'ﬂ%g
BEPHERNER RREFLE
EEEREEBNER - E5E
Wmﬁmﬁmﬁ““aﬂ%ma
WEE - BEFANEBE—E
bz & BIZER %ﬁ%ﬁ@
BRrE A BEREE - AEHE
—&K@@%ﬁ%ﬂﬁ#mo

$%§%E%Z%%H@'IE

BEEPZENFEMEZE T
ﬁ%%%&Zﬁ%&l%Z%A
H&ﬁw%éhﬂk e 52 & A
Rl o WEEH AEEOHR
REPIHE S R A REIFIACR
BARBRERER)RT% (ZTF
NEF 2 13%)  BURE —ERER
EEEPER -

HEHASBEREHES A

thERREELEEERRBRZ 21
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26 Financial risk management and fair values

(continued)

(a) Credit risk (continued)

(i) Deposits with banks

The Group limits its exposure to credit risk by placing deposits with
financial institutions that meet the established credit rating or other
criteria. Given these high credit ratings, management does not expect

any counterparty to fail to meet its obligations.

As at 31 December 2009, the Group has a certain concentration of
credit risk as 47% (2008: 80%) of total cash and cash equivalents

were deposited with a financial institution in the PRC.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying
amount of each financial asset in the balance sheet after deducting
any impairment allowance. The Group does not provide any other
guarantees which would expose the Group or the Company to credit

risk.

(b) Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible for their
own cash management, including the short term investment of cash
surpluses and the raising of loans to cover expected cash demands, subject
to approval by the parent Company’s board when the borrowings exceed
certain predetermined levels of authority. The Company's policy is to
regularly monitor current and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that
it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of
funding from major financial institutions to meet its liquidity requirements

in the short and longer term.
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(a) EERBS#)

(i) RITTEH

AEBEBEBEFRERNTAER
EEEFRREMEEZ SRS
# o REEER 2 EERR -
ENEEFRS HERERY
TEREMRSGHFELIRER
F -

RZZTZNF+=—A=+—8"
AEE R RREEBEERL
FAT% (ZZZT)\EF : 80%) F R

RALAFBIE S R - BUR

—EREMNEEERRER

EafFERREEEERBRL
FrEREREERERERB
BZREE- - NEBIRAEL
Eﬁﬁm#ﬁ'uﬁﬁ$%ﬁi
RRRAEZEER

(b) ESRENERR

AEEET 2 EEEEREEETE
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26 Financial risk management and fair values

(continued)

(b)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The following table details the remaining contractual maturities at the
balance sheet date of the Group’s and the Company's non-derivative
financial liabilities, which are based on contractual undiscounted cash flows
(including interest payments computed using contractual rates or, if floating,
based on rates current at the balance sheet date) and the earliest date the

Group and the Company can be required to pay:

The Group
2009
—gehE
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow

RORERR SR

More than

Within More than 2 years

1year 1yearbut  butless

oron less than than
demand  2years 5 years Total
—£R ik ikl

gR -FE  mEE

BAR ORWE OREF

$'000 $'000 $'000

r r r

26

Balance
sheet
carrying
amount
gE
A%
REE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LGETIR)

BEEREERN R E @

(b) EEREBMERE =)

TRIHAEERARRZIFTESR
BEREERZHRTANHPRFE - &
EERANARERARSR(BERED
EZME  HMBFBFEREEREE
B sEZANEXH)RAEERAR
AIRFPHERERZAYEE

rEHE

Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
BHRURRER

CRUEN
Within ~ More than 2 years Balance
Tyear 1Tyearbut  butless sheet
oron  less than than carrying
EN 2 years 5 years amount
B8 id BE
—ERg —FE  WER
REME JRWE SREF
§'000 $'000 §'000
Tr Tr Tr

Bank loans BIER 135,950 228315 313,091 977366 897,094 | 17,635 112656 280424 410715 340,176
Other payables EEAHE 108,161 - - 108161 108,161 | 79,381 - - 79381 79381
544,111 28325 313,001 1,085527 1005255 | 97016 11265 280424 490,096 419,557
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26 Financial risk management and fair values

(continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (continued)
The Company

2009
“gehE
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow

ARREHRA SR

More than
Within More than 2 years
1year 1yearbut  butless

oron less than than

demand  2years 5 years
—£R ik ikl
gR -FE  mEE

BAR ORWE OREF
$'000 $'000 $'000

r r

Other payables EthEf 1,149 - - 1149

26 KEREER AR E®

(b) EEREBMERR 2

Balance
sheet
carrying
amount
EE
A%
REE

ARF

2008
—IT\fF
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
RORERRST

CRUEN

Within ~ More than 2 years Balance
Tyear 1Tyearbut  butless sheet
oron  less than than carrying
demand 2 years 5 years amount
—4R H#iR ith] EE
EAiS MR A%
BAE  JRME  SRA KmfE
§'000 §'000
Tr T T T Tr

1175 - - 1175 1175

(c) Interest rate risk

The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from bank borrowings. The
Group's bank borrowings at 31 December 2009 were issued at variable rates
and therefore expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. The Group's
and the Company's interest rate profile as monitored by management is set

out in (i) below.
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(c)
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LGETIR)

26 Financial risk management and fair values 26 MIEREBREER XA E#)

(continued)
(c) Interest rate risk (continved) (c) FIZ=mEBE =)
(i) Interest rate profile () FIEER
The Group The Company
TEE |
2009 2009 2008
“BENE “EENE “ERN\E
Effective Effective Effective Effective
interest IEES interest interest
rate rate rate

ERAIZ (S ] ERAIZ
Fixed rate instruments: EEIE:
Time deposits THER 1.35% 159,001 0.8% 5,732 - - 0.8% 5732
Bank loans FTER 486%  (227,144) - - - - - -

(68,143) 5,732 - 5732
Variable rate instruments: FEIE:
Cash at bank BER 001%-117% 182,933 [ 1.0%-15% 24011 0.01% 3,693 [ 0.5%-1.0% 1,737
Bank loans FiER 548%  (669,950) 68%  (340,176) - - - -
(487,017) (116,099) 3,693 1,737

Total instruments TE%E (555,160) (110,367) 3,693 7469
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26 Financial risk management and fair values

102

(continued)

(c) Interest rate risk (continued)

(i)

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2009, it is estimated that a general increase/decrease
of 100 basis points in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, would decrease/increase the Group's profit after tax and
increase/decrease the Group's accumulated losses by approximately
$3,896,000 (2008: $905,000).

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined assuming that the
change in interest rates had occurred at the balance sheet date and
had been applied to the exposure to interest rate risk for all non-
derivative financial instruments in existence at that date. The 100
basis point increase or decrease represents management’s assessment
of a reasonably possible change in interest rates over the period until
the next annual balance sheet date. The analysis is performed on the

same basis for 2008.

(d) Currency risk

(i)

Foreign currency transactions

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through billings of
storage, transshipment and port income that are denominated in a
currency other than the functional currency of the operations to which
they relate. The currency giving rise to this risk are primarily United
States dollars (“USD").

As the Hong Kong dollars (“HKD") is pegged to the USD, the Group
considers the risk of movements in exchange rates between the HKD

and the USD to be insignificant.

Hans Energy Company Limited 2B 8RB R A A

26 KEREER AR E®

() FIZRE B4

(ii)

BEAT

RZETNEFE+—A=+—H &
%ﬁﬁ@ﬁ“kﬁ%ﬁ%$@m%
AT AR EREP EA TR~
BEF - BHRIRD AL E
ZBREERET RIEM, RO AREE
2 Bt E1E 493,896,000 ( — B Z
J\E :905,0007T) ©

A ERMFRESTBENERES
ERBEERELEMET  LEE
R BLR % B AT E SR 8 0T Rk
FEUTAESMTAZMEAER - —
BETEMSRIEERENE
ET—EFEAERHSREZ M
AR 2FE - —TTN
FHNI LR 2 BEETT

(d) E¥EER

(i)

IER S
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26 Financial risk management and fair values

(continued)

(d) Currency risk (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Recognised assets and liabilities

In respect of other trade receivables and payables held in currencies
other than the functional currency of the operations to which
they relate, the Group ensures that the net exposure is kept to an
acceptable level, by buying or selling foreign currencies at spot rates

where necessary to address short-term imbalances.

All the Group's borrowings are denominated in the functional currency
of the entity taking out the loan. Given this, management does not
expect that there will be any significant currency risk associated with

the Group's borrowings.

Exposure to currency risk

The following table details the Group's exposure at the balance
sheet date to currency risk arising from forecast transactions or
recognised assets or liabilities denominated in a currency other than

the functional currency of the entity to which they relate.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LGETIR)

26 IERABEERAAE

(d) E¥mEBE2)
(i) BRZEEREE

ERUBEEB 2 EHAH
ZEBRBEZEMNE F KR KE
RNRIE AEESEDREHN
TEER NREBEXREANE
HONE - BRFEEESE—@E
AR HIKF o

AEBZMABEDABRER
ZEBZIEEREA - Bt
EEET AMAKREZEES
BREMEBRZEERR -

BEH AR ERE

TR AEENEE AEHRH
NERERNEEEAINZEE
IMEZ EERIRHICHEREES
BEMELZEERARE -

(iii)

Exposure to foreign currencies

(expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

SRS (BUBTEIR)

2009 2008

—EEThE —ZTENF

United United

States NEICH

Dollars Dollars

E3om =St

$'000 $'000

Fr Tt

Trade and other receivables B 5 RHE M EWGRIA 473 647

Cash and cash equivalents ReMBeEHEER 7,674 16,497

Overall exposure FERE A B 8,147 17,144
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26 Financial risk management and fair values 26 MIEREBREER XA E#)

(continued)
(d) Currency risk (continued) (d) EMEBS )
(iv)  Sensitivity analysis (iv)  BRRE AT
The following table indicates the instantaneous change in the Group's T?%%ET\ NEHER - Eﬁﬁﬁﬁf’@
profit after tax (and accumulated losses) that would arise if foreign BILEABRARERTENER
exchange rates to which the Group has significant exposure at the T 1@$%@EH$K)§LI‘R&ZE
balance sheet date had changed at that date, assuming all other risk ERZABMET  BHAE
variables remained constant. BB EF (R R EE)EK
pdlliss-7
The Group rEE
2009
“EBhE
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) Increase/  (Decrease)/ (decrease) Increase/ (Decrease)/
in foreign  (decrease) increase in in foreign (decrease) increase in
exchange in profit accumulated exchange inprofit  accumulated
rate after tax losses rate after tax losses
EXAE RHEAER  RHEE | EXAE Eies 25 ER
/BB 8/ 0RP) (FD)/ B i :
$'000 $'000 $'000
T T T
United States dollars v 3% 244 (244) 3% 514 (514)
(3)% (244) 244 (3)% (514) 514
Results of the analysis as presented in the above table represent an ERFAZIz2OMBER - BIER
aggregation of the instantaneous effects on each of the Group entities’ SEEERB(AERANEEERE
profit after tax and equity measured in the respective functional BHMEARBTURZENZA)Z
currencies, translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rate W B 18 06 I e 2 BT &2 2 BB 52
ruling at the balance sheet date for presentation purposes. Z.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LGETIR)

26 Financial risk management and fair values 26 R EBEERR QD AE =

(continued)
(d) Currency risk (continued) (d) BE¥ =)
(iv)  Sensitivity analysis (continued) (iv)  SEEEZIT(E)
The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change in foreign exchange BRESMBREXZLERNE
rates had been applied to re-measure those financial instruments M ERAEEREREEREA
held by the Group which expose the Group to foreign currency risk SNEREBREAEZERTE - 81
at the balance sheet date, including inter-company payables and AEBRNRARBEUAERARKER
receivables within the Group which are denominated in a currency AZEEEE AN EBEHEZ
other than the functional currencies of the lender or the borrower. The JERRIE R EWHRIE - DT E
analysis excludes differences that would result from the translation FEBREBINER 2 BRER AR
of the financial statements of foreign operations into the Group's SEENEMAIEEE I ERH -
presentation currency. The analysis is performed on the same basis ZEENEZHNAMERZ £%E
for 2008. AT -
(e) Fair values (e) ARE
Fair values of financial instruments carried at other than fair value KU’ARELKIIARZz 2@ TAZ A E
All financial instruments are carried at amounts not materially different from FIBEMIAZ ARSBEERANR-ZET
their fair values as at 31 December 2009 and 2008. NERZZTZENFT_A=+—HBZA
REXMERTR -
The fair value of bank loans are estimated as the present value of future WITERZ AN EUNRKBEREZR
cash flows, discounted at current market interest rates for similar financial B REUSm I A BT 5 KaL
instruments. BT LAfREL
The fair values of trade and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents, B REMEYFIE  BekReEE
other payables and accruals and deferred revenue are not materially different B - B ENIE REHEE B A KIE
from their carrying amounts. JEW a2 AR EREE R REE &

ERER ©
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LETHT)

27 Operating lease arrangements

(@) The Group as lessee

At the balance sheet date, the Group had commitments for future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of land

and buildings, which fall due as follows:

27 KEHERH

(a)

REEEREBEA

REER  AEERBET A2 L0
EEFREMEAN ZARKERS
AEZEIAMT

The Group

Within one year —FR 4,459 5,481
In the second to fifth year inclusive RE_ZERAF(HEEMFRLELERN) 3,263 800
7,722 6,281

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for its
warehouses, office premises and directors’ quarters. Leases are negotiated
for an average term of two years with fixed rentals. None of the leases

includes contingent rentals.

(b) The Group as lessor

The Group leases out certain dock and storage facilities under operating

leases.
Rental and storage income earned during the year was approximately $150

million (2008: $153 million). The leases are negotiated for a lease term of 1

to 20 years. None of the leases includes contingent rentals.
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(b)

jousl
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AEVERESFEE 2HS - BODEZ
REFOME2 FHETER  HRES
TE - FIAMOBMERERAES

N

AEBEREBEA

AR EIRBE ST NS THE LS
1238 -
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LETTIT)
27 Operating lease arrangements (continuco) 27 KREHEZRH @
(b) The Group as lessor (continued) (b) AEBEHBHBA @
The Group's total future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable REERBIAIAHE KEHERYK 2
operating leases are receivables as follows: KRRFAEASEEHOT -
The Group
AEE

Within one year —FR 117,770 123,240
In the second to fifth year inclusive RE_ZERTF(EEMERELEAN) 378,379 379,913
More than five years i RS 1,054,096 1,143,941
1,550,245 1,647,094
At the balance sheet date, certain of the above future non-cancellable REER - FlRBETTRE2LE
operating leases receivables from year 2010 to year 2024 of $1,478,026,000 HE® R X EWRIER BT _F
(2008: $1,475,683,000) were pledged against banking facilities granted by TEZE T DNF 2 RRE WK
a bank to a subsidiary of the Group (note 20). H 2%1,478,026,0007?( T N\ F:

1,475,683,0000T) * EEA—KIRITAA
EE—RHBARELIRITEE 2 K
Gn (F1EE20) °

28 Capital commitments 28 EAREISE

At 31 December 2009, the Group had capital expenditure contracted for but RZZEZNF+_A=+—H FTEE}®E
not provided in the financial statements in respect of terminal development and RIS NEESAMEFFREMIEL 24
acquisition of port and storage facilities amounted to $184 million (2008: $82 BRAMEHRERE 2 EAHTELAR184E
million). T(ZZFTN\F : 0.82B7T) °

At 31 December 2009, the Group had capital expenditure not contracted for but RZZTZNF+ZA=+—8  FXEEHHF
approved by the board and not provided in the financial statements in respect of RASZE N IE BB AP F e e i /E R ET &Y
terminal development and acquisition of port and storage facilities amounted to BEEEEAEBERRMBRERBE AN
approximately $301 million (2008: $387 million). XA RN BVETL(ZZEZNF 1 387E

K
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(LETHT)

29 Material related party transactions and

balances

During the year ended 31 December 2009, the Group entered into the following
significant transactions with related parties:

Key management personnel remuneration

Remuneration for key management personnel, including amounts paid to the

Company's directors as disclosed in note 7 and certain of the highest paid

employees as disclosed in note 8, is as follows:

29

BBL cEARS ki

HEZZZNFT_A=+—HILFERN "
REBEBH T AANTERARS :

FTEEEEAEME

IZERBAEMEEEXNEARRESER
MIFE7THE) B TREHES (XM el EE)
ZER BT

Short-term employee benefits mEESEF 6,342 5,663
Post-employment benefits BRI R 114 114
Equity settled share-based payment A E 2 IR D S 1,308 2,178

7,764 7,955

30 Comparative figures

31

108

As a result of the application of HKAS 1 (revised 2007), Presentation of financial
statements, and HKFRS 8, Operating segments, certain comparative figures have
been adjusted to conform to the current year's presentation and to provide
comparative amounts in respect of items disclosed for the first time in 2009.

Further details of these developments are disclosed in note 2.

Immediate and ultimate controlling party

At 31 December 2009, the directors consider the immediate parent and ultimate
controlling party of the Group to be Vand Petro-Chemicals, which is incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands. This entity does not produce financial statements

available for public use.

Hans Energy Company Limited 2B 8RB R A A

30

31

BT

HRER(ERSFEADSEIR(ZTTLF
BETR) [z 2575 2 A R(E B
BMELDDFESRIAFL DA BT HLEEK
FETHE UNEAFEZENIR I
HRERAN -_ZTENFREZAB RHLLRE
F o W EERNER 2 EMFBENHE2RE

BEERRRERDT

RZZTAF+ZA=+—RH EERA
REER B E R &KZERKRT RVand Petro-
Chemicals » HRR BB R Z B ST MK o thE
ISRV ERRAARRIRE
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32

33

Non-adjusting post balance sheet event

In March 2010, the Group reached an agreement with its bankers to re-finance
bank loans of $398 million originally due within 12 months of the balance sheet
date. No adjustments have been made to these financial statements as a result of
this re-financing and therefore the bank loans are presented as current liabilities

at the balance sheet date.

Accounting judgements and estimates

Notes 23 and 26 contain information about the assumptions and their risk factors
relating to fair value of share options granted and financial instruments. Other
critical accounting judgements in applying the Group's accounting policies and key

sources of estimation uncertainty are as follows:

(i) Impairments

The Group reviews the carrying amounts of assets at each balance sheet
date to determine whether there is objective evidence of impairment. When
indication of impairment is identified, management prepares discounted
future cash flow to assess the differences between the carrying amount
and value in use and provides for impairment loss. Any change in the
assumptions adopted in the cash flow forecasts would increase or decrease

in the provision of impairment loss and affect the Group’s net asset value.

Impairment loss for bad and doubtful debts is assessed and provided based
on the management’s regular review of ageing analysis and evaluation of
collectibility. A considerable level of judgement is exercised by the directors
when assessing the credit worthiness and past collection history of each
individual customer.

An increase or decrease in the above impairment loss would affect the net

profit in future years.

(ii) Depreciation

Fixed assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the estimated
useful lives of the assets. The Group reviews the estimated useful lives of the
assets regularly in order to determine the amount of depreciation expense to
be recorded during any reporting period. The depreciation expense for future

periods is adjusted if there are significant changes from previous estimates.

32

33

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LGETIR)

REHRIFESER

RZZ-ZF=F AEBEERITITLH
F o R3BEILZRITER(RANGE HH
BT EARNIHPORTEFEBRE - &
RAMBHRLBEZEBREFELDHE
BMERRTERDNNEERZIRARDE

& o

2 H R A wT

FHEELERERSBRIAAAEIZRR
REBEEZZER - SAPAM235%26 © B
AN E R IROR 2 H A B S & 5 2B Ak 5t
TEEAZZFERRNAT

(i) WE

AEERSREEIENSEEZRE
B UEEREATEREIHREL
HoMBERERBEDR - BEERE
RAFATRI S MR EREE R A YR
S ER  UAREBEELREE -
FTERNE BIR TR R 2 AR N (R
HE) - JEIEINSOR D IREEREE
W ENEEZBEFE -

AEBREBEEEEHET ZRESN
T A B AT Y B 1 AT A i R BRORL (BB 1R
EITHERELRE  EFNFHESR
BPZEEEERBEBGRR SR T
HERE 2 HE -

iR EBRE NSRS e EER
FEZBMFE -

(i) TE

B EENBEREREENMBE AR
FHINE - AEEE TR RS HMHE
BEMNBAERFEY  AEFEEHR
SHEMFTERXSE - RRNFTEH
X EREBEMFBRFHNERNE M
# o
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(L8TTHR)

33 Accounting judgements and estimates

110

(continued)

(iii) Lease classification

Leases are classified as operating leases if the duration of the arrangement
are for less than a major part of the facilities” useful lives and the present
value of the minimum payments under the arrangement does not amount to
at least substantially all of the fair value of the facilities. The classification of
leases may change if there are significant changes from previous estimates
of the facilities” useful lives and the present value of the minimum payments.
The Group uses all readily available information in estimating the useful

lives and present value of minimum payments.

(iv) Provision for taxation

Judgment is required in determining the provision for income taxes. There
are transactions and calculations for which ultimate tax determination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. The final outcomes are

subject to uncertainties and resulting liabilities may exceed provisions.

Hans Energy Company Limited 2B 8RB R A A

33

BB R A E )

(iii) HED 8

38 & 2P S 2 ML MEREZ K

HORERFY MBRBELREXNZ&
EFRIBZ REL FFIERIEZBRED R
AE- AMEESSEAKEHE - B
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REEMNRZBER - SEMAE TR
BEH -
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34 Possible impact of amendments, new

standards and interpretations issued but
not yet effective for the year ended 31
December 2009

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA has issued the
following amendments, new standards and interpretations which are not yet
effective for the year ended 31 December 2009 and which have not been adopted

in these financial statements.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LGETIR)

34 EEMERBE-ZEENE
+ZA=+—HLEEEEX
EMZIEET ~ FETERI KRR
BOgER Y

BEAVBRERTBEER  BESHNAS
ERMZIRER] - M A RRE - BRE

ECTTAFT A=+ -RILEFERKRE
B TRRERMR A K -

Effective for

accounting periods

beginning on or after

RT3IB Sz %H%

ZETHBEX

HKFRS 3 (Revised), Business combinations (BB IS HREER)EIR 1 July 2009

(AT # A0 ] —EThFLA—B

Amendments to HKAS 27, Consolidated and separate (EEGFERDE2THRIEFTA 1 July 2009

financial statements [i7a RETAFH#RZK ] —EZNFLA—H

Amendments to HKAS 39, Financial instruments: (EEGFERDEIRIEFTA 1 July 2009

Recognition and measurement — Eligible hedged items (2@ T A #RRGTE—EEE —EZNFLA—H
#HIEA |

HK(IFRIC) 17, Distributions of non-cash assets to owners (BE(ERMGERELRZREZES 1 July 2009

BB WA EA DRI EE ] —TTNF+A—H

Improvements to HKFRS 2009 (CETNEHEEMERELER 2 BUE) 1 July 2009

or 1 January 2010

—EZNFLA—H

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the impact of these
amendments is expected to be in the period of initial application. So far it has
concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the

Company's results of operations and financial position.

H—E—-FTF—HF—H

REFEENEZ BB - FERIRFTRE
RERERPHRBABRENZZE - 25R
" RMZEIEET - FEARBES KA A
HWAREEZ KEEBERMBRRERERY
.
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Five Year Financial Summary

hFEFTE

Year ended 31 December
AEF A=+ —HLFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(L ETIIT)

Year ended 31 December

BEt-ZA=+t—-HLEE

RESULTS E
Turnover 2 X 201,802 166,936 160,286 165,166 158,944
Profit before taxation PR AT g ) 110,740 161,695 78,302 72.490 67,038
Income tax FRiS%t (7,631) (13,003) (6,986) (8,972) (19,085)
Profit attributable to equity RARRE

shareholders of the Company FE{L Y T 92,569 134,218 64,014 56,395 41,746
Profit attributable to minority DB R

interests FEAE S5 F) 10,540 14,474 7,302 7,123 6,207
Profit for the year FREA 103,109 148,692 71,316 63,518 47,953

At 31 December
R+=—A=+-—H

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BERAE
Total assets BEBE 734,638 661,207 915,967 1,097,930 1,647,571
Total liabilities afEesE 818,056 664,996 471,291 559,274 1,056,466
Minority interest LY R 19,371 23,118 31,140 40,291 46,567
Total equity attributable to equity AN AIRR B FE(L

shareholders of the Company 1S (102,789) (26,907) 413,536 498,365 544,538

Note: Under accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong, the acquisition of

the entire interest in Union Petro-Chemicals (BVI) Company Limited ("UPC") in
December 2004 has been accounted for as a reverse acquisition. Accordingly, the
above financial information represents those of the UPC Group.
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